
   Kent Taylor Civic Hall 
 200 NE Second Street 
 McMinnville, OR 97128 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, September 22, 2020 
5:30 p.m. – Level 10 Meeting 

7:00 p.m. – Regular Council Meeting 
Executive Session – to immediately follow the Urban Renewal Agency meeting (CLOSED TO THE PUBLIC) 

Welcome! The public is welcome to attend, however if you are not feeling well, please stay home and take care of 
yourself. In accordance with Governor Kate Brown's Executive Order we are limiting the amount of people at Civic Hall 

and if we meet capacity we may ask you to leave. With new face covering mandate all who wish to attend public 
meetings must wear a face mask or some kind of face covering is required. 

The public is strongly encouraged to relay concerns and comments to the Council in one of three ways: 
• Email at any time up to 12 p.m. the day of the meeting to Claudia.Cisneros@mcminnvilleoregon.gov;

• If appearing via telephone only please sign up prior to the meeting by emailing the City Recorder
at Claudia.Cisneros@mcminnvilleoregon.gov as the chat function is not available when calling in zoom; 

• Join the zoom meeting; send a chat directly to City Recorder, Claudia Cisneros, to request to speak
and use the raise hand feature in zoom to request to speak, once your turn is up we will announce your name and 

unmute your mic.   
______________________________________________________________________________ 

You can live broadcasts the City Council Meeting on cable channels Xfinity 11 and 331, 
Frontier 29 or webstream here: 

www.mcm11.org/live 

Level 10 Meeting:  
You may join online via Zoom Meeting:  

https://mcminnvilleoregon.zoom.us/j/98779532913?pwd=OXpNbS8rVHZtMHdXelRiTzRVWVo1QT09 
Zoom ID: 987-7953-2913 
Zoom Password: 909429 

 Or you can call in and listen via zoom:  1-253- 215- 8782 
ID: 987-7953-2913 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING:  
You may join online via Zoom Meeting:  

https://mcminnvilleoregon.zoom.us/j/92911913384?pwd=ajR5bWJGM2tKY0ZmaTc2Wi93Um15Zz09 
Zoom ID: 929-1191-3384 
Zoom Password: 984789 

 Or you can call in and listen via zoom:  1-253- 215- 8782 
ID: 929-1191-3384 

5:30 PM – LEVEL 10 MEETING – VIA ZOOM & COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. REVIEW CITY COUNCIL LEVEL 10 MONTHLY TEAM MEETING AGENDA

3. ADJOURNMENT

11

mailto:Claudia.Cisneros@mcminnvilleoregon.gov
mailto:Claudia.Cisneros@mcminnvilleoregon.gov
http://www.mcm11.org/live
https://mcminnvilleoregon.zoom.us/j/98779532913?pwd=OXpNbS8rVHZtMHdXelRiTzRVWVo1QT09
https://mcminnvilleoregon.zoom.us/j/92911913384?pwd=ajR5bWJGM2tKY0ZmaTc2Wi93Um15Zz09


Meeting Accessibility Services and Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Notice: Kent Taylor Civic Hall is accessible to persons with 
disabilities.  A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should 
be made a least 48 hours before the meeting to the City Recorder (503) 435-5702 or Claudia.Cisneros@mcminnvilleoregon.gov.  

7:00 PM – REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING – VIA ZOOM & COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL

2. PROCLAMATION
a. MADE Day and National Manufacturing Day
b. National Latinx Heritage Month

3. INVITATION TO CITIZENS FOR PUBLIC COMMENT – The Mayor will announce that any interested audience
members are invited to provide comments. Anyone may speak on any topic other than:  a matter in litigation, a quasi-
judicial land use matter; or a matter scheduled for public hearing at some future date.  The Mayor may limit comments to 3
minutes per person for a total of 30 minutes.  The Mayor will read comments emailed to City Recorded and then any citizen
participating via Zoom.

4. PRESENTATION
a. McMinnville Downtown Association (MDA) Annual Update

5. ADVICE/ INFORMATION ITEMS
a. Reports from Councilors on Committee & Board Assignments

1. Adopt City Council Level 10 Master Issues List
b. Department Head Reports

1. Diversity, Equity, Inclusion (DEI) Update - (Kylie Bayer, staff report in packet)

6. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Consider the Minutes of the January 22, 2020 City Council Work Session.
b. Consider the Minutes of the January 28, 2020 City Council Regular Meeting.
c. Consider Resolution No. 2020-59: A Resolution for City of McMinnville, Oregon Extending the

City’s Declaration of State of Emergency Expressed in Resolution 2020-18.

7. RESOLUTION
a. Consider Resolution No. 2020-58: A Resolution awarding the contract for the Apron & Taxilane

Rehabilitation Project, Project 2017-10.

8. ADJOURNMENT

EXECUTIVE SESSION – IMMEDIATELY FOLLOW THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY MEETING - VIA ZOOM (NOT 
OPEN TO THE PUBLIC)  

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. Executive Session pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(e) and (h): To conduct deliberations with
persons designated by the governing body to negotiate real property transactions and To consult with
counsel concerning the legal rights and duties of a public body with regard to current litigation or
litigation likely to be filed.

3. ADJOURNMENT

22

mailto:Claudia.Cisneros@mcminnvilleoregon.gov


 
 
 City Council Level 10 Meeting Agenda              Date: 9/22/2020 
                                                                                                                                     Time:  5:30-7pm                                                                                                                                                                                            
Attendees:  
Meeting Chair: Mayor Scott Hill 
 
Meeting Purpose: 

(1) Out of the results from City of McMinnville City Council and Executive Team 
Survey summary of findings report, review, edit and approve 2020 Q4 Master 
Issues List for the City Council 
 

Suggested preparation for this meeting:  
(1) Review Meeting Purpose and Agenda 
(2) Good News: Prepare your Business Best-Good News to share at the beginning of the 
meeting 
(3) Complete the following reading: 

(a) What the Heck is EOS- Chapters 1, 2 and 6 
(b) Robert’s Rules of Order book 
(c) City of McMinnville City Council and Executive Team Survey- Summary Findings 

prepared by Jensen Strategies 
(d) Draft Master Issues List 

(4) Review and highlight Jensen Strategies Survey summary findings.      
(5) Review and draft feedback for the draft issues list created and be prepared to give 
feedback regarding edits or additions needed to be considered complete.   

(a) Did we capture everything that we need to capture in the Master Issues List? Look 
for anything that might be missing. 

(b) Did we adequately describe the issues and opportunities that were captured?  Are 
any edits needed?   

(6) Be prepared to share one most striking takeaway for you from the report at the 
beginning of the IDS session 
 
Agenda: 
Review Meeting Purpose: 5 Min 
 

 
Good news: 10 Min. 
Business Best (City and City Council business) 
 

 
New Actions: 
 
 

3



 
Identify/Discuss/Solve Issues:   70 Min 

I. Each Councilor shares their high level takeaway overall from the report results. 
II. Systematically go through the report to capture all issues and opportunities in 

each section of the report.   
III. Review and approve final master issues list 
IV. Choose the October Level 10 IDS topic 

 
 

Meeting Rating: 5 Min 
Criteria:  

1. Did the meeting start and end on time? 
2. Did we follow the Level 10 agenda? 
3. Did we hold to our allotted timeframes for the meeting sections? 
4. Was everyone engaged and able to contribute to the discussion? 
5. Did we listen to each other and speak to each other respectfully in our discussions? 
6. Did we accomplish what we intended to accomplish in the meeting? 

Anything below an 8 ask “What could we do to make the meeting a 8 or higher for you next 
time?” 

Meeting ratings: 
 

4



McMinnville City Council and Executive Team Survey Findings – July 2020 1 

City of McMinnville 

City Council and Executive Team Survey 

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 

Introduction 

Jensen Strategies was retained by the City of McMinnville to conduct interviews with City Council and 
Executive Team members to identify the current attributes, challenges, and opportunities for 
refinement of the Council’s meeting framework.   The findings from these interviews will inform City 
Council discussions about retooling their Level 10 meeting structure and process as well as identifying 
other opportunities to enhance policy decision-making.   

The consultant conducted 19 individual in-person and Zoom interviews with the City Council and 
Executive Team members over two weeks.  The interviews solicited perspectives on the efficiency and 
effectiveness of current City Council decision-making processes, vetting and prioritization of issues, and 
connectivity to long-term plans.  In this context, participants were asked to identify what has been 
working well, could be improved, opportunities to enhance , and the challenges the policymaking group 
faces in its work.  Participants were also asked about their vision for an optimally functioning City 
Council and how they will know when they are successful in achieving it. 

Overview of Findings 

Interview participants are strongly supportive and proud of the City of McMinnville as an organization 
and a community.  They see the City Council has having had long-term constructive working relationship 
comprised of respect, collaboration, and civil discourse.  As a whole, staff is held in held in the highest 
regard as professionals and individuals.  In addition, as a group, the participants conceptually embrace 
Mac-Town 2032 as a policy guide. 

In the last year, the Council has been faced with unprecedented issues and challenges that have tested 
its effectiveness as a policymaking body.  Broader national issues like Black Lives Matter/Defund the 
Police, Coronavirus, and homelessness drew the Council’s attention from routine matters and long-term 
planning.   In addition, new Council membership brought fresh ideas and expectations different from the 
Council’s traditional parameters and tested the Council’s resiliency to incorporate them. 

The policy consequence from these issues has been a diversion of Council time and attention from the 
City’s strategic plan and other longer-term planning to reactively address the topics before them.  
Although staff has been diligent about working toward implementing the strategic plan, the Council has 
been hard-pressed to keep it on the radar. 

Addendum: Added 
on 9/23/2020



McMinnville City Council and Executive Team Survey Findings – July 2020 2 

It is in this context, interviewees also raise concerns of recent, albeit periodic, deviations from the 
Council’s traditionally constructive discussions and deliberations.  Examples offered by participants 
include public meeting dialogues that become personally critical, emotional, disrespectful, and 
overbearing. 

Interviewees acknowledge the above issues and are all willing to work toward achieving the highest 
functionality and realigning toward long-term policy development.  They see these recent developments 
as an early opportunity to address these issues before they become systemic.  

Working Well 

Interview participants were asked what was going well for the Council as the City’s policymaking body. 

1. Council Membership:  The City Council’s current membership composition is seen as a foundational
strength for this policymaking body.  The vast majority of interviewees perceive the current
membership as individuals who care about McMinnville above self and want what is best for the
community.  Many interviewees also see strength in the membership’s diversity by representing
various community interests and demographics, offering different professional and personal
experience, and integrating long-time institutional knowledge with new ideas.  Newer Council
members are also recognized as bringing a valuable fresh perspective to the group that can build on
the Council’s long-time success.

2. An Effective Policymaking Body: Overall, interview participants agree the McMinnville City Council
has a long track record as an effective policymaking body and, in their opinion, functions better than
many other Councils.  Some attributes cited as contributing to the Council’s history of effectiveness
include:
• Council members, as a rule, demonstrating respect and cordiality toward one another and staff.
• During public comment periods, the Council members treat citizens with respect while keeping

input focused.
• Council members are diligent about doing their homework and come prepared to meetings.
• Discussion and decision-making on routine Council agenda items are managed effectively.

3. L-10 Meetings: The L-10 meeting format is recognized as a potentially effective Council discussion
and issue management framework.  Earlier experiences with this meeting format  have generated
more robust and open dialogue on issues which many interviewees cite as positive.  Several
participants compliment Councilor Stassens as an effective and skilled facilitator for the L-10
meetings.

4. City Staff:  City staff is recognized by Council members as providing professional, high caliber, and
effective support for their decision-making.  Council members expressed appreciation for
department head expertise and knowledge.  Reciprocally, with some recent interactions
notwithstanding, staff feels Council supports their work and respects their expertise.

5. Strategic Plan:  The City’s strategic plan, Mac-Town 2032, which was developed through extensive
public input, is supported in concept by both Council and staff.  Staff members note the strategic
plan offers them a long-term guide for operations and are doing their best to fulfill its
implementation.

Addendum: Added 
on 9/23/2020



McMinnville City Council and Executive Team Survey Findings – July 2020 3 

Areas for Improvement 

Interview participants were asked to identify areas where the Council could improve its effectiveness. 

6. Lack of Long-Term or Consistent Policy Focus: In the last several months, the Council’s attention has
been diverted away from  longer term policies and goals by one-time and/or controversial issues.
These instances are referred by many interviewed as “squirrel moments” when the Council spends
significant time and energy deliberating over issues that are not routine or part of a longer-term
policy strategy.   These issues originate from different sources including community, national
movements, health crises, and/or individual Council members.

Council members and staff both acknowledge the consequence of responding or reacting to these
issues has hindered proactive policymaking.   Examples offered include Coronavirus, Black Lives
Matter/Defund the Police, Fire Department staffing / SAFER Grant, DEQ monitors, and
Homelessness.  While no one disputes the community importance of these issues, interviewees note
the Council does not have a structure or system to effectively address these issues and still maintain
a focus on the long-term policy direction.

7. Erosion of Decorum and Rules of Conduct:  The vast majority of interviewees express significant
concern over recent instances where emotional, personal, and unnecessarily disrespectful
confrontations have occurred in Council meetings.  These episodes, while not frequent at this time,
are seen as a concerning deviation from the Council’s reputation of routinely measured and civil
discourse in public meetings.  Many shared concern that, if unchecked, this behavior will increase
and lead to systemic dysfunction by fostering distrust and acrimony among Council members and
with staff.

In this context, the greatest concern to interviewees are recent instances of criticism and/or
disrespect of department heads in public meetings.  A frequent example raised by many Executive
Team members relates to recent discussions on Fire Department staffing and funding, where more
than one department head’s professional credibility was publicly questioned.  Many staff members
say this type of public rebuke has the potential to undermine individual managers’ credibility with
their staff and impact their professional effectiveness.  Another potential consequence raised by
several managers is the ability to retain or recruit Executive Team members if they no longer
perceive the Council as a constructive partner in City policy and operational issues.

Regarding intra-Council discussions and deliberations during public meetings, interviewees
acknowledge witnessing less civil and/or respectful behavior in the last year.  Examples of this
behavior include members dominating dialogues, being more confrontational with their peers on
the dais, interrupting each other, bringing heightened emotion to policy debates, participating in
side conversations, and posting on social media during meetings.  Interviewees note the Council
appears to have disregarded the 2019 update of the City Council Group Agreement.

Overall, Council members and staff, feel the Mayor and fellow Council members have not been
assertive enough to hold others accountable during the meeting when disrespectful and/or less civil
discourse happens.

Addendum: Added 
on 9/23/2020



McMinnville City Council and Executive Team Survey Findings – July 2020 4 

8. Challenging Approaches to Agenda Management/Structure:  The Council agenda development
process and the criteria for selecting items are brought up as being unclear or need further
clarification.  In the case of agenda development, some Council members and staff do not know how
the Council agenda is developed or how items are placed on it.  They note without written
procedures the process appears to be informal and lends itself to being ad hoc at best or limiting
access at worst.

Several interviewees raise the structure of the agenda as inefficient.  Most see the Council liaison
reports at the beginning of the meeting as unnecessarily time consuming and ill-placed considering
there are more important matters which audience members may be waiting to hear or comment on.
Public comment at the beginning of the meeting was brought up as time consuming but
interviewees are divided about the importance of having it positioned there.

9. Perception of a “Rubber Stamp” City Council:  Many interviewed believe there is a perception that
the City Council is a “rubber stamp” policymaking body that approves whatever staff recommends.
While most believe this viewpoint is not accurate, or that anyone on Council or staff desire such a
dynamic, they hope this perception will not be perpetuated.  In fact, a number of Executive Team
members want Council members to know, they have no expectation that Council accept their
recommendations.

10. Disproportionate Discussion Opportunities :  Council members and staff shared a perception that
sometimes newer Council members’ questions and/or agenda ideas are given less priority or
dismissed by longer-term Council members.  Some feel there is “an unwritten rule” not to make
waves or ask too many questions about issues.  This dynamic is perceived as a Council cultural issue
rather than anything personal.

11. Lack of Role Clarity:  Many interviewed shared observations that some Council members are acting
outside their roles as policymakers and/or not acting in the greater interest of the City.  Examples
include independently directing staff on special work requests for their own policy agendas and
advocating for selected City workforce interests over broader City priorities.  It is also noted by some
that newer Council members have not had the opportunity to have the same elected official training
that other members received.

12. Unfinished L-10 Meeting Framework:  While many interviewees are hopeful and supportive of the
L-10 meeting framework, they feel some issues should be addressed to make the structure and
process effective.  These include:
• While the meetings have elicited a more robust and open discussion, they have also resulted in

accentuation of the conflicts and criticisms among the members and staff as described above.
• The current format, with sharing of recent personal achievements uses up too much time that is

already limited.
• The structure can be bureaucratic and inflexible by limiting the ability to bring up different or

new topics.
• Some staff members say their role and opportunity to participate, if any, in these meetings is

not clear.
• While many appreciate Councilor Stassens bringing the L-10 framework to the Council and her

strong facilitation skills, wearing two hats (facilitator/Councilor) limits her ability to participate
and can cause role confusion.

Addendum: Added 
on 9/23/2020



McMinnville City Council and Executive Team Survey Findings – July 2020 5 

• Many raise the question of whether L-10 is sustainable especially with one Councilor as the
perceived process champion.

13. Lack of Public Communication:  Several interviewees perceive the Council’s communications with
the public to be ad hoc versus coordinated.  According to some, there is a void of coordinated
messaging to keep the public informed of the Council’s priorities and actions.  A few interviewees
also feel there is not enough opportunity for public comment at Council meetings – especially on
agenda items that do not require public input.

Opportunities 

Interview participants were asked about opportunities to enhance the City Council’s effectiveness as a 
policymaking body.   

14. Institute and Enforce a Code of Conduct:  Many interviewees suggest revisiting or replacing the
Council’s Group Agreement to institute an effective and mutually agreed upon code of conduct.  In
concert with this suggestion, interviewees say these standards will not be effective unless the
Mayor, Council President, and fellow Councilors are assertive in holding members accountable.

15. Strengthen Strategic Plan Focus:  Many interviewees suggest additional measures could be taken to
keep a consistent, but not exclusive, focus on Mac-Town 2032 initiatives.  Suggestions include tying
annual goal setting to the plan using a “strategic plan lens” when reviewing all policy issues and
using a scorecard (see below).  However, this focus is not meant to exclude issues not part of the
strategic plan.

16. Updates to Council Agenda Development and Structure:  To address time management issues
related to Council meetings, some suggest revising the agenda structure to put less priority items
(e.g., liaison reports) toward the end.  Also some recommend bringing transparency and clarity to
the agenda development process by providing written guidelines.

17. Conduct Trainings:  Several trainings are recommended to build Council knowledge and skills as
policymakers.  Most often suggested is the League of Oregon Cities elected officials training which
covers roles and responsibilities for Council members.  Other recommendations include, land use,
ethics, and DEI (diversity, equity, and inclusion).

18. Revise L-10 Meeting Process:  Given the L-10 meeting issues outlined above, interviewees suggest
addressing three key elements – better time management, clarify staff roles, and how issues are
selected for discussion.  Some suggest using a third-party facilitator for the meetings to allow all
Council and staff to be full participants.

19. Institute a Policy Scorecard:  It is suggested Council institute a “scorecard” to be able to track and
be accountable for moving long-term and priority policy initiatives forward.  Several suggest this
scorecard be tied to the strategic plan but not exclusively.

20. Tie Budget Process to City Policy:  Some interviewees feel Council policy priorities need to play a
stronger role in guiding the budget process.  On a related note, a few mention the need for greater
clarity regarding what budget items constitute “core services” as a budget baseline.

Addendum: Added 
on 9/23/2020Addendum: Added 

on 9/23/2020

Addendum: Added 
on 9/23/2020



McMinnville City Council and Executive Team Survey Findings – July 2020 6 

Challenges 

Interviewees were asked about potential obstacles to enhancing the Council’s effectiveness as a 
policymaking body and/or addressing the issues raised above.  Four primary challenges were identified. 

21. Institutionalizing L-10:  In order to institutionalize the L-10 format as a core mechanism for Council
discussion, interviewees saw potential barriers.  Most notably, besides one current Councilor, there
is no one else who understands or appears likely to champion it going forward.  Thus, there is a
probability of this format being unique to the current Council.

22. Competing Needs for the City: There are always competing demands for resources that can cause
conflicting priorities among policy members.  A true test of the Council’s ability to work together
effectively will be the ability to navigate through these conflicts to tangible and constructive
outcomes.

23. Change Management:  Change is difficult.  Many of the issues identified in the interviews will
require cultural, procedural, and personal change.  Navigating these changes will be important and
challenging.

24. Staff Recruitment and Retention:  Several Executive Team members suggest if Council and staff
working relationships become eroded due to trust issues, it may become more difficult to recruit or
retain new staff.  While it is noted current Council-staff working relationships are strong, a few
recent Council interactions (noted above) raised this particular challenge.

Optimally Functioning City Council 

Interview participants were asked for their vision of an optimally functioning City Council.  The following 
are the key elements as seen by most. 

25. Respectful Environment for Council and Staff: Almost unanimous, interview participants saw an
effective City Council as one where respect is an operative word.  Respectful interactions with
Council members, staff, and the public are seen as important to civil and constructive policy
discussion and development.  This environment of respect means everyone feels heard.

26. Focus and Delivery on Long-Term and Annual Goals:  The Council maintains an overarching focus
on long-term (e.g., strategic plan) and annual goals using them as guides for decision-making when
appropriate.  Tangible progress is made toward achieving these desired long-term outcomes.

27. Deliberations Focused on Content Not Emotion:  Council deliberations focus on the content of the
issue at hand and is devoid emotional lobbying or argument.  Rather, the discussion remains focused
on the topic without drama.  The Council members are able to have opposing or different views
while making decisions without high emotion.

28. Rules of Conduct with Accountability:  The Council has established rules of conduct which they all
agree to and own.  Council leadership enables members to participate within the parameters of the
rules by holding everyone accountable.   Individual members also hold themselves accountable for
their actions.

Addendum: Added 
on 9/23/2020



McMinnville City Council and Executive Team Survey Findings – July 2020 7 

29. Transparency and Clarity of Policy Positions:  Council members are transparent and clear regarding
their policy positions and their rationale.

30. Adherence to Roles:  Council members adhere to their roles within the context of the Charter and
the Council-Manager form of government.  To this end, Council members maintain their role as
policymakers and work with the City Manager regarding concerns or requests related to the City’s
operations.

31. Other Elements Offered of an Optimally Functioning City Council:  Some ideas were offered by only
one interviewee.  The following list includes characteristics mentioned by one interviewee of an
optimally functioning City Council:
• A sustainable business structure that can transition between Councils.
• Consistent training for new Council members.
• Ability to have robust and open discussions.
• Respect for the democratic process.
• Members don’t hold onto personal grudges.
• Equitable access to placing agenda items.
• Staff provides the necessary information for meetings.
• Council and staff work toward the same goals.
• Council members serve the community beyond self-interest.
• People in the right seats.

Success Factors 
Interview participants were asked what factors would demonstrate that the Council has become 
optimally functional.  Three factors were predominant. 

32. Tangible Progress on Long-Term and Annual Goals:  The Council is able to demonstrate tangible
achievements related to their long-term and annual goals.

33. Respect and Trust Among Council and Staff:  Council members and staff feel respected and trusted
by each other in conducting their work.

34. Adherence to the Code of Conduct:  Council members are following their code of conduct and hold
each other accountable.

35. Other Success Factors:  Some ideas were offered by only one interviewee.  The following list
includes success factors of an optimally functioning City Council mentioned by one individual:
• Deliberations are conducted without high emotion.
• Public communications are consistent from Council members.
• Council makes policy decisions in a timely manner.
• Clear understanding of why or why not topics are put on the Council agenda.
• Citizens are not complaining at City Council meetings.
• Policy direction is clear.
• People are happy.

Addendum: Added 
on 9/23/2020



McMinnville City Council and Executive Team Survey Findings – July 2020 8 

Interview List 

City Council 

Mayor Scott Hill 
Council President Kellie Menke 
Councilor Adam Garvin 
Councilor Remy Drabkin 
Councilor Sal Peralta 
Councilor Wendy Stassens 
Councilor Zack Geary 

Executive Team 

Jeff Towery 
Kylie Bayer 
Jenny Berg 
Mike Bisset 
Scott Burke 
Claudia Cisneros 
Jennifer Cuellar 
Walt Gowell 
Chief Rich Leipfert 
Susan Muir 
Heather Richards 
Chief Matt Scales 

Addendum: Added 
on 9/23/2020



Building the Machine of a High Functioning City Council
Definition: A list of issues that could prevent our City Council from reaching the City's vision and opportunities that will 
help us be more successful at reaching our vision.

Date Created: Votes: Total: Notes:
Issue:
City Council does not have a structure or system to effectively address the issues unrelated to the strategic plan and still 
maintain a focus on the long-term policy direction.
The Council appears to be having difficulty adhering to the 2019 update of the City Council Group Agreement.  
Fellow Council members have not been assertive enough to hold others accountable during the meeting when 
disrespectful and/or less civil discourse happens.
How do we build an environment where Councilors both respect each other and have and express different views to 
effectively solve complicated problems together. 
How can the City Council meetings and/or process be restructured to ensure maximum efficiency and City Councilor 
appropriate participation.
The process and the criteria for selecting the items for the agenda for meetings are brought up as being unclear or need 
further clarificaiton.
What does it mean to have a perception of a "rubber stamp" City Council and what is the root problem that needs to be 
solved?

What is our culture, process and training around open and honest dialogue on the dais?  Where are we now ("unwritten 
rule" not to make waves) and what culture, processes and training do we need to intentionally institutionalize?
What should our training program be for McMinnville City Councilors?
How do we get on the same page regarding City Council's communication with the public?
Formulate the McMinnville City Council Scorecard and how we will hold ourselves accountable to those metrics

Addendum: Added 
on 9/23/2020

Q4 2020 Draft Master Issues List



Adopted 5/14/2019 

CITY COUNCIL GROUP AGREEMENT 

1. I will individually support the collective decision-making of the Council. If I disagree
with the decision made by the council, I will exercise my convictions without
personalizing the issue and without eroding the collective reputation of the council.
Once the decision is made, I will respect that decision.

2. I will respect other members of the Council, even if we disagree philosophically, by
articulating my view, listening openly to their perspectives and rationale, sharing my
position and intended actions with the Council in a timely manner

3. I will present my rationale for my points of view and when asked for a rationale, I will
act positively and offer my data for my conclusion.

4. If I am asked to respond or give my rationale to an issue and I am unready, I will say
so, but will provide an approximate time when I will be.

5. I will say what I mean with no underlying messages in a positive manner.

6. I will not personalize issues or decisions.

7. If I have a concern or issue with another Council member or Mayor, I will go to that
person first and in a positive, private, and timely manner, and share that concern. I
will present my feelings and how those feelings affect me.

8. I will focus on the present and the future and use the past only as data for the
present and the future.

9. If I am approached by someone, I will be open and positive and do my best to
respond to his/her concerns.

10. I will not blame others for situations that I have opportunity to resolve.

11. I will recognize that the Council's role is to set policy and not to be administrators.

12. I will give other Council members and the Mayor advance notice through the City
Manager of significant matters to be introduced at Council meetings so as to
preclude stressful surprises at Council meetings. “Advance” means at least time to
review the data.

13. I will engage in a robust dialogue with the community in a constructive and inclusive
manner.

14. I will follow the intention and the law concerning doing Council business outside of
Council meetings.

Addendum: Added 
on 9/23/2020



 

 
 
 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 

Whereas, manufacturing and traded sector companies make a very significant 
contribution to the national, state and local economy; and 
 
 Whereas, our community is fortunate to be the home of over 90 world-class 
manufacturing and traded sector companies featuring a multitude of products made in 
McMinnville; and 
 
 Whereas, those companies add to the vitality and prosperity of our community by 
employing over 4,000 people with a $236 million average annual payroll. 
  
 

Now, therefore, I, Scott A. Hill, by the virtue of the authority vested in me as the mayor of 
the City of McMinnville, do hereby proclaim October 2, 2020, as 

  

 

McMinnville | MADE Day in conjunction with 
The National Manufacturing Day 

 

 

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Official Seal of the City 
of McMinnville to be affixed this 22nd day of September 2020. 
 
 
 
  
       __________________________________ 

     Scott A. Hill, Mayor 

5



 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 

 
Designation of September 15 – October 15 as Latinx Heritage Month 

 
WHEREAS, National Latinx Heritage Month celebrates the Latinx community and 
highlights its countless achievements; and  
 
WHEREAS, the observation began in 1968 as Hispanics Heritage Week under 
President Lyndon B. Johnson, and was enacted into federal law on August 17, 1988, 
calling upon the people of the United States to observe this time with ceremonies, 
activities, and programs; and 
 
WHEREAS, many Latinx Americans trace their roots to the cultures of indigenous 
peoples of the Americas – including the Arawaks, the Aztecs, the Incas, the Maya, 
and the Tainos, and some trace their roots to ancestors from Spain, Mexico, the 
Caribbean, Central and South America, and Africa; and 
 
WHEREAS, September 15 – October 15 is recognized as National Hispanic Heritage 
Month, a time to honor and celebrate the invaluable ways Latinxs contribute to 
McMinnville’s common goals, to celebrate a diverse Latinx culture, and to work 
toward a stronger and more inclusive society for all; and 
 
WHEREAS, the September 15th is significant as a starting date for Latinx Heritage 
Month because it is the anniversary of independence for Costa Rica, El Salvador, 
Guatemala, Honduras, and Nicaragua. Mexico and Chile celebrate their 
independence on September 16th and 18th respectively; and 
 
WHEREAS, Latinxs are a significant part of McMinnville’s population and 
influence the fabric of our community with contributions to McMinnville’s arts, 
businesses, restaurants, civic leadership, education, and overall culture; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Scott Hill, Mayor of McMinnville, do hereby proclaim the 
period between September 15 and October 15, 2020 as: 
 

Latinx Heritage Month 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand, this twenty second day of 
September, in the year two thousand twenty. 

 
______________________________ 

      Scott A. Hill, Mayor 

6



McMinnville
Downtown
Association

 2020 Annual Report

7



8



Positives

9



 Identity Crisis

 Lack of Leadership and Staff Turnover

 Program Evaluations

 Organization Sustainability

Priorities for Improvement

10



MDA Mission

THE MCMINNVILLE DOWNTOWN ASSOCIATION WORKS TO 

PROMOTE AND ENHANCE OUR HISTORIC DOWNTOWN AS 

THE ECONOMIC, SOCIAL AND CULTURAL HEART OF THE 

COMMUNITY.
MDA Values

INTEGRITY: We work to do the right thing by making decisions through a consistent and transparent process.

SUSTAINABLE: We strive toward a balanced, responsible funding model and organizational stability.

COMMUNICATIVE: We actively foster collaborative and open dialogue to strengthen relationships with members.

WELCOMING AND FRIENDLY: We cultivate an inclusive and safe environment that is respectful to our stakeholders, visitors and 
staff.

PURPOSEFUL: We are intentional in making decisions that take into consideration the needs and concerns of our members. 11



Returning to the Four Pillars of Main Street

O
rg

an
iz

at
io

n

P
ro

m
ot

io
n

D
es

ig
n

E
co

no
m

ic
 V

it
al

it
y

12



New hiring committee

New job description

Focus on growth 
and sustainability

Hiring an Executive Director

13



2020 MDA Annual 
Dinner

19
Local 

Businesses 
Honored

$13,339 raised for MDA 161
Guests

Thirteen wonderful 
Piccadilly Prizes auctioned

14



Executive 
Director 

Onboarding Plan
• Introduction to Key Stakeholders

• Engage in Industry Round Table Discussions

• Accessibility through Meet and Greet 

Encounters

15



Dave Rucklos
MDA Executive Director

• Multi-Business Owner

• North American Brand Manager

• Downtown Business Association Director

• City Councilperson

16



Reacting to a Pandemic

COVID-19

17



“The Daily”

Communication with 
Stakeholders

18



“The Survey”

Quantifying the 
Pandemic’s 

Financial and 
Social Impact

19



Creating a Safe Environment

20



Farmers Market
90% Vendor 
Retention 
from 2019

$1,446  Dis t r ibuted  in  
Double  Up Food Bucks  

1,500
Weekly
Visitors

Expanded market layout to 
ensure social distancing for 
safety of  our vendors and 

market customers
21



Expanding the Food and Beverage Footprint

22



2020
Membership

Stabilizing in the face 
of a Pandemic

Strong Business 
community support: 
40% of membership is 
outside of Downtown 

core district

Membership Numbers: 
92.7% of  2020 goal reached to date

23



Current Initiatives

MURAC Façade Improvement Grant
Downtown Banner Revival

Twinkle Light Maintenance
Gift Card Sales: $38,726.40 worth of 

gift cards sold in 2020 24



The Future
is NowThe Future

is Now
 Protect the Product
 Enhance the Product

25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



 
 

 P a g e  | 1 

City of McMinnville 
Parks and Recreation 

600 NE Evans Street 
McMinnville, OR  97128 

(503) 434-7310 
www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov 

 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 
 
DATE: September 16, 2020  
TO: Mayor and City Councilors 
FROM: Kylie Bayer, Human Resources Manager 
SUBJECT: Diversity, Equity, Inclusion Update 
STRATEGIC PRIORITY & GOAL:  

 
OBJECTIVE/S: Grow City's employees and Boards and Commissions to reflect our community 
 
 
Report in Brief:   
This is an update on the City’s diversity, equity, and inclusion (DEI) efforts. 
Background:   
On September 3, 2020 the City Council received a draft Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Plan for 
review. On September 8, 2020 the Council discussed the document during the Department Head 
Report part of the regular Council meeting. Some Councilors provided feedback directly to City 
Manager Jeff Towery and HR Manager Kylie Bayer. The plan remains in draft and will be refined 
with guidance from the DEI Advisory Committee, once established. 
 
The Council identified three DEI priorities: 

1) Conduct mandatory DEI training with all City employees 
2) Establish a DEI Advisory Committee  
3) Conduct a DEI assessment to inform the draft DEI Plan and ongoing DEI work 

 
The City received proposals for DEI training and audit work from two firms, 1) Construct The 
Present, and 2) Moore Consulting. The City is reviewing the proposals and will select one of the 
firms or possibly both to perform a combination of the work. The training will be scheduled for Fall 
2020, preferably before the Thanksgiving Holiday. The City Council will be invited to the training. 
 
The City will present an ordinance establishing the DEI Advisory Committee at the October 13, 
2020 City Council meeting. Per City Charter, Chapter XI Section 62 the name, powers, and duties 
of boards and commissions shall be provided by ordinance.  
  

50

http://www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov/


 

Page 1 of 19 
 

 
CITY OF McMINNVILLE 

MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
Held at the Kent L. Taylor Civic Hall on Gormley Plaza 

McMinnville, Oregon  
 

Tuesday, January 22, 2020 at 6:00 p.m.  
 

Presiding:  Scott Hill, Mayor 
 
Recording Secretary:   Claudia Cisneros 
  
Councilors:  Present   Excused Absence  
 Adam Garvin   Remy Drabkin 
 Zack Geary   
 Kellie Menke, Council President  
 Sal Peralta     

Wendy Stassens    
      
Also present were City Manager Jeff Towery, Finance Director Jennifer 
Cuellar, Planning Director Heather Richards, Legal Counsel Spencer 
Parsons, Senior Planner Chuck Darnell, Senior Planner Tom Schauer, 
Associate Planner Jamie Fleckenstein, and Jerry Eichten, McMinnville 
Community Media and Tom Henderson, NewsRegister.     

 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Hill called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 

and welcomed all in attendance.   
 
2. PRESENTATION & DISCUSSION:  Growth Planning 
 
 Planning Director Richards said this was a work session on growth 

planning. When they applied for a DLCD grant in October to move 
forward with long range planning, DLCD said they were not supportive of 
the proposed process. She was bringing the dialogue to Council tonight, 
walking through the background, and putting on the table several different 
paths for consideration for moving forward. Growth planning had been a 
long tenure of angst and frustration in the City. There had been a lot of 
attempts at moving forward with growth planning with many different 
challenges, appeals, and barriers and they had not managed to get through 
the maze of the system. It was not clear to her what the end goal was and 
if they all shared the same end goal. At times it felt like they were a mouse 
in a maze with no in or out and no middle that they were trying to get to. 
They were just running around inside the experiment and the cheese was 
not available to them. She gave a quick snapshot of McMinnville.  

  
• McMinnville was beginning to gentrify. 

51



 

Page 2 of 19 
 

• Deficit of 1050 homes. 
• Lower and moderate income households were being displaced. 
• Homelessness was increasing. 
• Average home sale price in 2019 was $398,200. 
• Employers were losing employees due to housing scarcity. 
• Last successful UGB amendment was adopted in 1981 for the 

planning horizon of 1980-2000. 
• McMinnville had been growth planning for 25 years for a 20 year 

planning horizon. It had been actively challenged for 20 of those 
years. 

• We spent $1,000,000 on growth planning that had not returned one 
new housing unit. 

 
They were almost out of land to develop for housing. The total number of 
dwelling units in McMinnville increased by 3,257 units from 2000 to 2017 
(33% change). About two-thirds of McMinnville’s total housing stock was 
single family detached. McMinnville had a larger share of multifamily 
housing than Yamhill County which was comprised of both urban and 
rural areas. McMinnville also had a larger share of single family attached 
housing than other comparison cities. About 12% of McMinnville’s 
housing stock was manufactured housing. McMinnville had a larger share 
of manufactured housing stock than all other comparison cities. She 
showed a history of building permits issued for new residential 
construction to 2017 which showed they were trending low. They should 
be at 200-225 permits per year and on average they had been doing that 
except for the last decade. This has led the City to an affordable housing 
problem. The median household income in McMinnville was $55,440. 
The median listed home price right now was $389,900 and median price 
of a home sold was $338,500. The average rent for an apartment was 
$1,794. They were not serving the community in terms of affordability. 
They did have 41% of households making an income greater than 120% of 
the median household income and could afford the home prices, but most 
of the community could not. She often got the question why people 
weren’t building more affordable homes and the answer was there was a 
market for the higher end homes because they were building half as many 
homes as they used to build. Developers were still serving that market 
because the margin was there and the market not being served was the 
lower end market. As people came in who had the income to buy those 
homes, if there was a scarcity in the higher end homes they were buying 
into the moderate level homes and people who were on the lower end of 
the spectrum were in homes they could not afford. Housing was a 
commodity determined by supply and demand. Unaffordable housing was 
the result of artificial scarcity. Price = Demand/Supply. A city that had 50 
units on the market and there were 100 families looking to move to that 
city, the supply could only accommodate 50% of the demand and thereby 
the most affluential 50% could afford it. Sprawl was occurring in the 

52



 

Page 3 of 19 
 

County. The County was not supposed to be growing at a rate similar to or 
greater than the cities. The premise of the Oregon land use system was that 
cities were where the density and growth occurred. McMinnville was the 
largest city in Yamhill County and was meant to carry 30-40% of the 
population. They were doing that very well for a while. McMinnville’s 
average annual growth rate from 2000-2010 was 1.9% and unincorporated 
county was 0.4%. However the following decade changed and they were 
now at a 0.5% growth rate and the unincorporated county was at a 1.9% 
growth rate. It had flipped on its head because of the supply issue. 
McMinnville was experiencing one of its slowest annual average growth 
rate periods in its history as an incorporated city. The population growth 
that should be happening in McMinnville was happening in the 
unincorporated county. For the projected population numbers, the annual 
average growth rate for McMinnville from 2017 to 2035 should be 1.4% 
per year and right now they were at 0.4% trending down to 0.3%. Cities 
were funded through property tax revenue and that revenue paid for public 
services, such as police, fire, library, parks, planning, and administration. 
The property tax should be keeping up and helping to pay for public 
services. In Oregon they were capped as to how much property taxes 
could go up per year, which was 3%. The intention was the differential 
between the cost of goods for delivering public services and the property 
tax value going up was accommodated by growth. If they did not have the 
growth they were not making up the deficit. From 2007-2019 the City’s 
General Fund operated in the red 7 out of the 11 fiscal years with a total 
deficit of $2,821,197. When that happened, there was discussion regarding 
additional levies to maintain existing levels of service. In terms of the 
property they had left in the community to develop, there were 2 
properties greater than 20 acres, and only 1 was in the City limits and was 
very hampered to provide transportation and wastewater to the property. 
There was a very limited number of smaller parcels in the City limits. The 
parcels that were greater than three acres were mostly in the rural 
residential lands. McMinnville was supposed to be accommodating 12,739 
people and 5,002 homes by 2041 and 28,045 people and 11,012 homes by 
2067 which was building 200-250 new dwelling units per year. Land 
supply was constrained which caused higher land costs, lack of affordable 
housing opportunities, lack of overall housing opportunities, increasing 
homeless population, loss of economic opportunities, more population 
growth in unincorporated county creating sprawl, deficit in tax revenues to 
fund public level of services, and infill in a vacuum. By law, cities must 
plan for 20 years of population growth. McMinnville had been trying to 
plan for 20 years of population growth for 33 years unsuccessfully. The 
system had failed McMinnville and the City had been plagued by constant 
challenges and appeals. This community had spent thousands of hours of 
staff time, thousands of hours of community engagement, and a million 
dollars trying to amend its UGB. What they were struggling with in 

53



 

Page 4 of 19 
 

McMinnville was the dichotomy of protecting farms and forests and 
serving the community.  
 
Planning Director Richards discussed the Oregon land use goals. 
 
#1 – Citizen Involvement 
#2 – Local land use planning process 
#3 – Preserve agricultural lands 
#4 – Conserve forest lands 
#5 – Protect natural resources, scenic and historic areas and open spaces 
#6 – Maintain and improve air, water and land resources quality 
#7 – Natural Hazards 
#8 – Recreational Needs 
#9 – Provide adequate economic development 
#10 – Provide for housing needs 
#11 – Public facilities and services 
#12 – Transportation 
#13 – Energy Conservation 
#14 – Urbanization 

 
These goals were meant to be equal priorities. No one goal should be 
prioritized over another goal, they should all be balanced. By state law, 
cities were supposed to expand their UGBs to accommodate future 
growth. They were in an imbalanced place based on selective ideology 
where they were choosing some goals over other goals. There had been a 
long sustained effort to challenge and legally appeal McMinnville’s 
growth planning to protect farm and forest lands. But it was not intended 
to become a zero sum game to protect farm and forest lands at all costs. 
She thought they had lost sight of the people and planning for the future 
community and generations. McMinnville had a long history of 
generational families that had stayed here, but if they got to a place where 
they did not have affordable housing supply, how would that be sustained? 
To put it in perspective, Oregon had 62,963,840 acres of land. 
 

• Of that, 849,217 acres were in a UGB (1.3% of total state land was 
in a city UGB to house a majority of the state population) 

• Since 1973, cities had added 81,660 acres of land to their UGBs, a 
1.0% growth. 

• The population of Oregon had increased by 88% in that time 
period. 

  
Yamhill County had 458,240 acres of land. Of that, 7,552 acres were in 
McMinnville’s UGB (1.6% of total county land). Since 1973, cities in 
Yamhill County added 847 acres of land to their UGBs (0.2% growth). 
Yamhill County’s population had increased by 140% in that timeframe. 
Yamhill County was the fourth fastest growing county in terms of average 

54



 

Page 5 of 19 
 

annual growth rates since 1969. If McMinnville expanded its UGB by 
1,200 acres to accommodate the growth of 12,800 people, that would be 
0.3% of Yamhill County’s overall acreage and 0.002% of statewide 
acreage. Yamhill County had 192,251 EFU acres. If the City expanded by 
1,200 acres on to only EFU land, the City would be absorbing 0.6% of 
Yamhill County EFU land (6/10 of 1%). The City could absorb 12,800 
people on less acreage than the unincorporated county. McMinnville had 
spent millions of dollars, thousands of hours of staff time, years of 
community engagement and dialogue on growth plans that had been 
challenged and appealed every step of the way yielding not one new 
housing unit on new land supply in 25 years. This contributed to current 
gentrification, housing unaffordability, and increasing homelessness in the 
community. Tonight they were at a decision making milestone and they 
needed to figure out how to move forward. 
 
Planning Director Richards said they needed a 5 year land supply in the 
City limits, a 20 year land supply in the UGB, and a 50 year land supply in 
the URA. The state told them how much growth to plan for the 20 and 50 
year horizons. The City then calculated the housing, employment, and 
public land needs based on those numbers and looked at how much 
buildable land was in the UGB and if the two did not match up, they 
talked about how to meet the need. They had to submit something to the 
state showing how they were going to meet the need. The choices were not 
to expand the UGB and figure out how to meet the need within the current 
UGB, expand the UGB, or do a little of both by going denser in the City 
limits and expand the UGB. She discussed the City’s UGB history and 
past growth planning efforts which were very similar to what they were 
discussing today. The UGB expansion plan in 2003 focused on creating 
neighborhood activity centers with similar numbers that they were talking 
about now. The state approved that plan but it was appealed and the City 
was allowed to bring in a portion of the land as rural residential lands. 
Those lands had not been developed and the current property owners were 
not interested in developing them. They went into mediation with 1,000 
Friends during that time period and a few more areas were allowed in. 
These were already developed and would need to be redeveloped for 
growth. The result of this effort was bringing in 217 acres of land that no 
one actually believed would develop new housing in any near term 
horizon. That left the City in a deficit of 673 acres including 320 acres of 
residential land.  
 
Planning Director Richards said they were trying again and a housing, 
employment, and public land needs analysis was done. Staff did a housing 
strategy, Great Neighborhood Principles, City Center Housing Strategy, 
form based residential design standards, and embraced HB 2001. If they 
wanted to move forward as they were today as a community and be able to 
house the community as today, they would need to provide about 40% of 

55



 

Page 6 of 19 
 

homes for people making less than 80% of the area median income. Often 
that was subsidized housing. They would also need to provide another 
20% for people making 80-120% of area median income which was 
referred to as workforce housing. They would also need to provide 40% 
for those making greater than 120% of area median income which was 
market rate housing. The future housing mix was proposed to be 55% 
single family detached, 12% single family attached, and 33% multifamily. 
Currently the mix was 68% single family detached, 9% single family 
attached, and 23% multifamily. The intention of the change was to get 
more density and have more multifamily. It was an aggressive approach. 
They had redevelopment potential of 8% or 422 units. They also made a 
collection of creative ways to respond to needs and ways to provide home 
ownership opportunities to different levels of income. Those ideas 
included one mixed use residential zone with many different housing types 
and one high density residential zone. They also looked at the Great 
Neighborhood Principles to ensure people were living in great 
neighborhoods with density. Good comprehensive planning brought 
density into the mix in a quality way for great neighborhoods. It mixed up 
a diversity of housing, income levels, and generations. They put together a 
strategy that got away from the isolation of different zones with a fine 
grained land use pattern and moved to form based design standards. They 
wanted to mix it up so people could live in apartments in a neighborhood 
with people living in single family homes and share parks and other 
amenities. They also looked at design and development standards based on 
what they thought McMinnville could absorb and how to bring higher 
density housing online that looked like single family homes. What that 
meant for the City was a commitment to a higher density housing strategy 
and a paradigm shift in zoning from homogenous single family residential 
zones to neighborhoods that were inclusive and diverse with a variety of 
housing types. They put together a campaign called Growing McMinnville 
Mindfully. They wanted to hear from people about what they loved about 
McMinnville so they could be sure to maintain that. They also wanted to 
hear people’s ideas about tomorrow’s McMinnville. They asked people 
how they wanted to grow, whether up, out, or both. So far people said they 
preferred growing out or both. The up option, higher density only option, 
was not generating a lot of interest.  
 
Planning Director Richards said they needed more urban land supply to 
accommodate future growth for the next 20 years. Staff’s recommendation 
in March of 2018 was to: 
 

• Initiate a discussion about growth ASAP 
• Pursue a substantial UGB amendment 
• Recommend an Urban Reserve Area analysis and establishment 
• Recommend standard UGB amendment process 
• This work would be a minimum of 5 years 

56



 

Page 7 of 19 
 

The long term vision for the Urban Reserve Area was to have a big picture 
50 year growth plan which would provide certainty for the growth areas 
and allow for oversizing of public facilities to serve future growth areas. 
The framework plan for the UGB would be a conceptual guide for future 
lands in the UGB holding zone, give general guidance to community form 
and design, and promote Great Neighborhood Principles with commercial 
centers that were bike and pedestrian friendly with public spaces. They 
could also create area plans that make sure the public facilities were 
cohesive and adequate, schools, and mix of housing units. They were 
calling it the Goldilocks UGB—not too big, not too small, but just right 
for McMinnville. It was defined by community dialogue and values, 
thoughtful planning, Great Neighborhood Principles, and enduring value 
for future generations. The Council had given direction in October 2019 to 
initiate Urban Reserve Area planning, general facility planning, Urban 
Growth Boundary analysis, UGB Framework Plan, specific facility 
planning, and UGB area plans, annexation. With that she had applied for a 
DLCD technical assistance grant of $50,000 with a match of $155,000. 
They had support from Representative Noble, Regional Solutions, and 
local partners. The City received a letter of denial in January 2020. In that 
letter DLCD expressed concerns about the Urban Reserve and UGB 
process the City put forward and said they would provide a grant for 
$25,000 to conduct a UGB analysis and then the City could do a URA 
process after that. She thought the URA/UGB process was good, but 
DLCD was not supporting it because of fear that the process would be 
appealed. There was no case law yet as there had been no opposition for 
other communities, and McMinnville was in a different environment than 
other communities. There had already been rumblings of opposition to 
their intention to do a Urban Reserve Area process first. So staff was 
checking back with Council on how they should move forward. There was 
a memo in the packet from Spencer Parsons, legal counsel, for this effort 
that was provided to DLCD where they stated this process did meet the 
intent of the law. Findings had been adopted by nine other communities 
who had used the process previously and there were other communities 
who wanted to move forward with this same process. However it was very 
litigious in McMinnville and they could not find one appeal on a UGB 
amendment that was affirmed for the City in totality.  
 
Planning Director Richards said they still needed to plan for 5,002 new 
homes and 12,739 people by 2041. How did they protect the small town 
charm and aesthetic of McMinnville while providing housing choice for a 
diverse community and ensure that everyone lived in a quality housing 
situation. The potential paths forward included: 
 
1. URA/UGB 
2. UGB 

a. Dust off 2003 submittal and resubmit with revised findings  

57



 

Page 8 of 19 
 

b. New alternatives analysis 
c. Concurrent with URA 

 3. Regional problem solving 
a. RPS – 2003 UGB Plan 
b. RPS – URA/UGB 

 4. Legislative bill 
 5. Quasi-judicial UGB amendments 
 6. Do nothing (wait for a statewide fix) 
 7. Negotiate a deal 
 
 The decision making filter was: 
 
 1. Does it achieve success – reality not monopoly 

a. Housing 
b. Economy 
c. Parks 
d. Livability 
e. Infrastructure 
f. Master planning 
g. Local control 

 2. Achievement of goals 
 3. Costs 
 4. Time 
 

Planning Director Richards discussed Oregonopoly vs. reality. As they 
went through the Oregon land use system and put together years’ worth of 
data and analysis and spent a lot of money, they ended up looking at land 
not as if it would develop in the 20 year time period but on a land use 
system based on priorities and they had to bring that land in. They were 
not looking at whether the land would serve the need. If they did not have 
parcels of land that could be master planned, they were not going to 
achieve any of the goals like missing middle housing and HB 2001. They 
could continue to look at land that they brought into the City in 2003 
which were homes on 1-5 acre lots and could assign 780 homes into that 
neighborhood thinking it would eventually develop that way and hopefully 
in 20 years it would develop that way. Or they could think about land in 
terms of how they could create density and inspire development to occur 
in the 20 year horizon in a master planned way. The other thing we need to 
be aware of is the appeal factor and being like the movie Groundhog’s 
Day. The discussions they were having today in terms of challenges were 
the very same challenges that had occurred in the community since the 
1990s. To understand how this moved forward, they needed to understand 
priority lands for UGB amendments. The first priority land to bring in was 
Urban Reserve land. The second priority was land adjacent to the UGB 
that was an exception area or non-resource land. The third priority was 
land designated as marginal land and the fourth priority was agricultural 

58



 

Page 9 of 19 
 

and forest lands. Surrounding McMinnville was high priority soils and 
were protected lands in terms of the fourth priority to bring in. They did 
not have any soil around McMinnville that did not fall into that category. 
They also had exception lands and a lot of urban development surrounding 
the City that was not in the City limits that they would be looking at to 
bring in to serve growth. They were really redevelopment lands which 
were much more difficult to develop than greenfield development was, 
which was farmland. 
 
The UGB amendment regime in Oregon was complex, multi-layered, case 
law rich, and not necessarily intuitive. The system favored appellants. The 
appeals process set up years of process and remands where appellants only 
needed to question the process and not provide solutions. The opposition 
was focused on selective ideology to save farm and forest lands and urban 
planning for livability was secondary. Cities were spending millions of 
dollars, thousands of hours of staff and volunteer time, years of 
community engagement on efforts that if challenged in court were 
remanded for more work and investment, parsed up, or mediated. Many 
cities were actively choosing to do nothing, wink at the system, and wait 
for the system to collapse under a housing crisis.   
 
The first solution, URA/UGB process, was to do a 50 year land supply 
with a combination of exception/redevelopment lands and farm/vacant 
lands. The 20 year land supply would be based on cohesive area planning 
and fiscal infrastructure planning. It had been accomplished successfully 
by nine communities all supported by DLCD and funded with TA grants. 
She anticipated it would cost $1 million, it could take 2-15 years to do, 
through this process they would achieve all their needs and state goals, 
and they would expect an appeal. The second solution, dusting off the 
2003 submittal, would give a 20 year land supply with a combination of 
exception/redevelopment lands and farm/vacant lands. Infrastructure 
planning was already completed, it just needed to be updated. It would 
cost about $500,000 with a potential timeframe of 2-10 years, all of the 
needs would be achieved as well as state goals, and they would expect an 
appeal. The remand identified the vulnerabilities in the plan and what the 
City would need to beef up. It had an awkward process laid out by the 
court and they would have to follow that process. 
 
Legal Counsel Parsons said in addition to the remand from the court, the 
statutes and rules had been changed and they would need to overlay what 
was there against those changes. 
 
The next solution, UGB – new alternatives analysis, was what DLCD 
would fund and encouraged the City to do. The 20 year land supply would 
be mostly exception/redevelopment land. It likely would not address the 
20 year need due to unlikely full redevelopment of exception lands in the 

59



 

Page 10 of 19 
 

20 year planning horizon. This was an Oregonopoly solution. It would 
cost about $1 million and DLCD offered a $25,000 grant and there might 
be opportunities for more grant funding. The timeframe was 2-10 years, 
the needs and state goals would not be achieved, and an appeal was 
possible. The solution to do a UGB concurrently with a URA would mean 
they would be looking at lands first for the UGB in terms of the priority 
structure rather than the lands in the priority structure for the Urban 
Reserve Area. 
 
Councilor Peralta asked what the basis was for rejecting the idea of 
starting with the URA and then drilling down to the UGB. 
 
Legal Counsel Parsons said the concern was the URA would be adopted to 
extend the area out for a projected 10-30 year horizon beyond the 20 year 
horizon of the UGB. DLCD had developed a concern about the 50 year 
block and carving the 20 year UGB out of that. Based on the litigation that 
McMinnville had faced, DLCD thought a more conservative approach was 
to block out the 20 years and then build the 10-30 year URA on top of it. 
The rule did not specifically say they could not do it the other way. 
 
Councilor Peralta asked if they might not have rejected it if it was a 
different community, but because of McMinnville’s set of facts and 
possible litigation they said no. 
 
Legal Counsel Parsons said that was what was on everyone’s mind. If 
McMinnville followed the direction where they did the 20 year UGB and 
then the 10-30 year URA, that was substantially more work for the City. 
 
Planning Director Richards said if they were putting the UGB together and 
it had mostly exception lands and they struggled to redevelop that in the 
20 year horizon, they could use the URA to replenish the UGB. If they 
were going to sit on land that never redeveloped, they were not 
replenishing. To put that in perspective, the 217 acres of rural residential 
land that was brought in had been on the books for 17 years. Not one acre 
had come into the City and it had not yielded one new housing unit. They 
would be relying on that same type of land for the housing supply. This 
would cost about $1,000,000, potential timeframe of 2-15 years, it would 
not achieve needs or state goals, and an appeal was possible. Another 
solution was collaborative regional problem solving. This was the title of a 
statutory process that enabled local jurisdictions to get together to define 
the region’s problems and to develop regional solutions. Regional problem 
solving also allowed regions to implement the statewide planning goals 
without strictly following the administrative rules of the Land 
Conservation and Development Commission. The intent was if they were 
having a regional issue that was a barricade for cities to move forward 
they could get everyone together and sit down and talk about it to get past 

60



 

Page 11 of 19 
 

it. This was what happened in southern Oregon. There were six 
communities that went through an Urban Reserve process and pulled their 
UGB out of that by a regional problem solving effort. What occurred there 
was two cities in close proximity to each other were vying for the same 
land as part of their growth planning. The regional problem solving was a 
model to sit down and figure out that contention and work through that. 
DLCD came to the table and recommended this URA/UGB process to 
them. For this solution, the rules and methodology were established up 
front with all stakeholders present and LCDC approved the plan. The 
process took six years to navigate in southern Oregon. For this solution the 
20 year land supply would be a combination of exception/redevelopment 
lands and farm/vacant lands, the infrastructure planning was already 
completed but would need to be updated, and it needed to be led by the 
County. They could look at the 2003 UGB plan to see if they could get it 
through a regional problem solving process. The cost would be about 
$500,000, the timeframe would be 5-10 years, it would achieve the needs 
and state goals, and an appeal was possible. The opposition was at the 
table from the beginning. The same regional problem solving process 
could be done for the URA/UGB process and the County would help lead 
that because they were interested in that process for the City. The cost 
would be $1 million, timeframe was up to 20 years, it would achieve the 
needs and state goals, and an appeal was possible. Another solution was a 
legislative bill. The 20 year land supply would be a combination of 
redevelopment/exception land and farm/vacant lands, it would address the 
needs, and could open up a statewide discussion about whether or not the 
Oregon land use system was working. They would put together what the 
UGB would look like, maybe it would be the 2003 plan, and see if they 
could get support at the legislature to try to get it to move forward. It was 
a political process and it could garner a lot of opposition. It would cost 
about $500,000, the timeframe was 5-10 years, it would achieve the needs 
and state goals, and there would be no appeal. Another solution was quasi-
judicial UGB amendments. They would adopt a needs analysis and then 
set up a quasi-judicial process for property owners to navigate 
individually. The incremental amendments would slowly come into the 
UGB and address some need, but maybe not all. It would be fragmented 
land use planning and coordination. There would be no land use plan and 
only fringe project development on the edges. There might be costly 
infrastructure issues both downstream and as the edges expanded. What 
was concerning about this option was it was not led by the City or 
community and would not meet citizen involvement goals. It was unclear 
if it would meet the 20 year land supply. The cost was $750,000, the 
timeframe was 2 years, it would not achieve the needs or state goals, and 
an appeal was possible. Another option was the do nothing approach. 
Many cities in Oregon already made this decision due to pent up 
frustration with the system. They could expect gentrification and very 
limited new housing supply as well as displacement of undervalued homes 

61



 

Page 12 of 19 
 

for new development. Affordable housing was no longer a real dialogue in 
terms of expectations. 
 
Councilor Garvin asked what the land supply was in the most adjacent 
small towns.  
 
Planning Director Richards had this discussion at the Housing Solutions 
Committee where Willamina, Sheridan, Dayton, Lafayette, and Amity said 
they could provide their housing needs. Their UGBs were meant to supply 
those communities’ 20 year housing need and they would be looking at 
hundreds of acres. Lafayette just went through a UGB amendment and 
brought in 60 acres. The scale was very different and the infrastructure to 
support that growth would be a struggle. It was a dialogue that came up, 
but she did not think it was realistic. 
 
Councilor Stassens asked how the do nothing approach would meet all of 
the needs.  
 
Planning Director Richards said it would meet all of the needs but only for 
those who could afford to live here. 
 
Mayor Hill said this option achieved no goal except for the state to step up 
and fix it. How would they be able to achieve what the state wanted them 
to do? 
 
Planning Director Richards said other cities had said that they had enough 
land and would rewrite code to allow for more density to achieve the state 
goals. Those cities were not densifying in that manner, but were slowing 
down in terms of growth and gentrifying.  
 
Councilor Peralta asked to what extent were these options mutually 
exclusive. If they pursued one of the options, would that forestall them 
from pursuing a legislative strategy at the same time? 
 
Planning Director Richards said no, but there were costs involved. They 
could put together a UGB and if it failed try the legislative piece with that 
investment. The last solution was to negotiate a deal with groups like 
Friends of Yamhill County and 1,000 Friends. It would eliminate citizen 
involvement and engagement. It could happen at the front end of the 
process as well as towards the end. They would need to give something 
up, most likely land to really serve the need and take in expensive 
redevelopment/exception lands. Woodburn went through this process and 
the state would say it was a successful effort. However, Woodburn did not 
feel the same as they gave up their land need and ability for future UGB 
amendments for a certain period of time. There would be no appeals, but 
she reminded them that the 2009 mediation was unsuccessful for the City 

62



 

Page 13 of 19 
 

to negotiate a deal. The potential costs could be up to $800,000, the 
timeframe was 2-5 years, it might achieve the needs but would not meet 
state goals, and someone else could still appeal the decision. She was 
looking for direction from the Council as to how to move forward. The 
state had pushed up their timeframe in regard to the population data which 
would be updated in June 2020. 
 
Council President Menke said if they did a public process, what would she 
recommend. 
 
Planning Director Richards thought they should hear from the public about 
the process and set it up in a way where they would get feedback in a 
fairly neutral manner. Who this was most impactful to were the families 
that lived here and future families who would live here. They needed to be 
engaged and that it was not just all special interest groups. 
 
Mayor Hill said the discussions they had about Three Mile Lane had been 
inclusive and had been a good public dialogue. 
 
Planning Director Richards would look into how that was done and maybe 
get someone to help facilitate the dialogue. 
 
Councilor Stassens asked which options would the state give funding for.  
 
Planning Director Richards said it was a biennium program and she did 
not know if they could use the $25,000 for a different process. 
 
Gordon Howard, Community Services Division Manager for DLCD, said 
their letter to the City offered $25,000 for a process that involved a 20 
year Urban Growth Boundary expansion analysis plus an additional 30 
year Urban Reserve analysis. LCDC did approve the 2003 plan and the 
case before the Court of Appeals was 1,000 Friends vs. LCDC. He was 
interested in exploring that option with the City. The rules regarding the 
issue of farmland vs. non-farmland and expanding the UGB had changed 
as a result of the McMinnville decision and were rewritten in 2013. They 
still prioritized not adding farmland, but adding exception lands. They did 
allow for bypassing that land if it was shown to be too expensive to 
develop. They did research at the time and found that generally above a 
certain lot size, rural residential areas did redevelop and below a certain 
lot size they didn’t. That informed the rules that they wrote. They would 
be willing to work with the City on those issues. The alternative of doing 
nothing might not be an option given recent changes in state law for 
housing. HB 2003 mandated cities the size of McMinnville to update their 
Housing Needs Analysis on an 8 year schedule and to take measures to 
accommodate the needs. It was an attempt to prevent cities from doing 
nothing regarding housing. 

63



 

Page 14 of 19 
 

Councilor Garvin asked what the ramifications were for that. 
 
Mr. Howard said the City could get an enforcement order from the state 
and they could end up in court. 
 
Councilor Peralta asked beyond the idea of revisiting the 2003 plan, what 
suggestions did he have for the Council. 
 
Mr. Howard suggested the City look at meeting the 20 year land needs as 
well as look at increasing the efficiency of development inside the City. It 
looked like the City would need to expand the UGB and they needed to 
find out how to do that under state law. He thought they should pursue the 
Urban Reserve after that process. There were examples of successes 
throughout the state. They found in research around the state that other 
rural residential areas did develop quicker than they had in McMinnville. 
The question would be why that had not occurred in McMinnville. One 
possibility might be unusually stubborn property owners or that those 
lands were difficult to serve and should be passed over. Those were the 
types of questions they should look at when looking at the expansion of 
the UGB. 
 
Councilor Garvin asked about right-sizing the UGB. Did expanding by 
1,200 acres coincide with other cities this size? 
 
Mr. Howard did not have an answer to that because he did not know the 
details of McMinnville’s analysis. It didn’t sound out of the ordinary for 
the size of the City. 
 
Councilor Peralta said in the Portland Metro area they had underbuilt from 
2006-2016 by 27,000 units and statewide by 155,000 units. The 
development in Yamhill County had flipped from happening within the 
UGB to happening outside the UGB in the unincorporated areas. What 
kind of legislative strategy was DLCD looking at to help communities 
address these issues on a more statewide scale? 
 
Mr. Howard said it was concerning. Their analysis was that a lot of things 
led to the underproduction of housing after the recession in 2008/2009. 
One of those was local land use regulations preventing housing from being 
built. That was what led to the laws for clear and objective standards for 
residential development. It had been stated that one of the impediments to 
providing housing was the UGB system, but DLCD disagreed with that. 
While McMinnville had a lot of difficulty, many cities had successfully 
maintained a 20 year UGB land supply for residential development. It was 
a managed growth scenario and the way the system was supposed to work. 
They did not agree that the problem was Urban Growth Boundaries. The 
problem was how they were proposed for expansion or the process that 

64



 

Page 15 of 19 
 

was being used. They tried to rewrite the process by which farmland vs. 
exception lands were chosen to be in a UGB to try to resolve those issues. 
The idea was that a 20 year land supply should provide enough land for 
future residential development. It was important for local governments to 
have development codes that did not get in the way of residential 
development. 
 
Councilor Peralta said in the case of McMinnville, DLCD’s position was 
the City followed the correct process and DLCD defended the City’s most 
recent process and it went down anyway. Did he think the 2013 legislative 
changes would have been sufficient to have a different legal outcome? 
 
Mr. Howard did not have an answer without looking at it in more detail. 
He thought it was worthy of analysis and they would be willing to work 
with City staff to see if it could be justified. 
 
Council President Menke said in regard to exception lands, a 
representative from LCDC had been in the group meetings and should 
have a feel for how they could bypass the exception lands. She would like 
a serious look at that option. 
 
Mr. Howard said they would be willing to work with the City on that. 
There were specific ways to analyze serviceability of those lands and they 
could do a quick analysis to see if there were options. 
 
Mayor Hill opened up a discussion on the options. 
 
Councilor Geary asked if the Yamhill County growth numbers were with 
McMinnville or without. 
 
Planning Director Richards said they were with McMinnville. 
 
Councilor Geary clarified the last UGB that was adopted was for 1980-
2000. Would they be making up for the lost time from 2000 to now and 
planning for those years that were lost? 
 
Planning Director Richards said the population forecast had been adjusted 
down for the slower population trend in McMinnville and she did not 
think they would have to go back and do a planning horizon from 2000 to 
2020. The needs analysis that they had been working on for the past year 
was based on today moving forward. 
 
Councilor Geary asked if the state gave all cities the same population 
growth statistics.  
 

65



 

Page 16 of 19 
 

Planning Director Richards said no, it was a population forecast done by 
Portland State University for every city. From what she could tell there 
had been a coordinated population forecast discussion here twice before. 
They made two efforts at this growth planning with the coordinated 
numbers. 
 
Councilor Geary would like to see a graph of the population forecasts 
from far back in the past. 
 
Planning Director Richards said staff could put that together. 
 
Councilor Geary asked about public transit growth. 
 
Planning Director Richards said there was a transit development plan that 
was put together with Yamhill County two years ago. It was a plan in 
place for how to serve McMinnville and around the County. 
 
Councilor Geary asked if the 2003 effort was shot down or if they 
abandoned it or both. 
 
Planning Director Richards said the City elected to not move forward with 
responding to the remand. The appeal was of LCDC’s decision to approve 
McMinnville’s UGB amendment. The court remanded it back to LCDC to 
do more work and LCDC remanded it back to the City and the City 
decided it wasn’t worth the investment to continue forward because it 
would not respond to the City’s need. 
 
Councilor Geary asked what the legal ramifications were of dusting off 
something that had already moved that far into the process. 
 
Legal Counsel Parsons said they would have to find that out if that was the 
direction of the Council. Planning Director Richards said when the appeal 
occurred, the City took out all of the updated Development Code and 
Comprehensive Plan amendments to implement the UGB expansion. They 
still had all of that information, however. 
 
Mayor Hill said for the last two years they had been doing a lot of analysis 
that would be the foundation for this work and could be used to put back 
into the 2003 findings. 
 
Legal Counsel Parsons said taking that work and incorporating it into the 
2003 plan and updating it was one of two options. The other would be to 
use the 2003 plan as a template and move forward with a new process. He 
would have to see if there was a statute of limitations for the 2003 plan as 
far as the timeframe. 
 

66



 

Page 17 of 19 
 

Council President Menke asked if they updated the 2003 plan, could they 
also do a URA process. 
 
Planning Director Richards said yes, there was always the opportunity 
after establishing a UGB to do a URA process. Many cities did not do that 
because they were exhausted when they got to the end of the UGB effort. 
 
Councilor Stassens asked if they could update the 2003 plan and do the 
URA process concurrently. 
 
Planning Director Richards said they would have to do more analysis to 
figure out what the parameters of the 2003 plan would be. The state was 
now saying they were not supportive of doing the URA/UGB processes 
concurrently. 
 
Councilor Stassens asked about the regional problem solving option vs. 
the negotiation option. 
 
Planning Director Richards said the regional problem solving was a public 
and transparent approach. It brought all of the stakeholders to the table to 
have the discussion as opposed to the negotiation with one or two 
stakeholder groups. LCDC would need to approve the plan as well. 
 
Council President Menke asked who they would interact with if they did a 
regional problem solving option. 
 
Planning Director Richards was not sure as McMinnville’s problem was 
getting the UGB amendment through the land use system without an 
appeal. She was not sure if this option was set up for that. It could be a 
discussion with the County and Newberg about how every UGB 
amendment was challenged in the County and how to get past that. 
 
Legal Counsel Parsons thought it would be framed around the regional 
problem of exception areas. 
 
Council President Menke asked if it was worth it to try for a URA first 
especially with the opposition. 
 
Legal Counsel Parsons said the issue with that option was that it would 
have to be approved by LCDC who was already expressing reservations. It 
would be a matter of Council fortitude, to know that they would be on an 
uphill battle from the beginning and going through LCDC and the appeals 
court. 
 
Councilor Stassens thought they should pursue reopening the 2003 plan 
and regional problem solving options.   

67



 

Page 18 of 19 
 

Councilor Garvin agreed with pursuing those options. He did not think 
they needed to rush into any of these options when they did not have the 
code updated for how to develop that land. 
 
Councilor Peralta would like to have a public process first to hear from 
people about their preference on the options. He agreed the place to start 
should be the 2003 plan. He was not sure about the regional problem 
solving option as he was concerned about bringing in additional 
stakeholders and adding more complication. He thought they should 
consider a legislative solution because these issues were being 
experienced in other cities as well as McMinnville. 
 
Councilor Geary agreed about holding a public process first. He thought 
they could wait a bit as things were rapidly changing in the state and they 
could learn more about what had happened since the challenges to the last 
process. He also liked the idea of the regional problem solving approach to 
the URA/UGB issue. 
 
Council President Menke was also in favor of reopening the 2003 plan. 
She was not sure about the regional problem solving option, but thought a 
back-up legislative approach was a good idea. She agreed about getting 
public input. 
 
Mayor Hill thought the public process was a good idea. They should get 
some more training about these issues before the public input. He agreed 
with reopening the 2003 plan. He was not sure if the regional problem 
solving option would work as Newberg had different situations than 
McMinnville and he could see them getting caught up in a lot of other 
issues. He suggested bringing in other communities who were struggling 
like McMinnville and form a coalition to lobby the state legislature to see 
if they could get a foothold. That would not be a top priority, but an 
ongoing piece because there were some things statewide that needed to be 
addressed to bring more equity to the process. 
 
Council President Menke said her concern with a legislative approach was 
that Councilors changed and the will of the Council might change too. 
 
Councilor Peralta said his view on the legislative approach was to get a 
solution for McMinnville, not a broader solution. 
 
Mayor Hill questioned their ability as an entity to get legislative change 
just for McMinnville. 
 
Councilor Peralta thought other cities had done it. 
 

68



 

Page 19 of 19 
 

Mayor Hill thought it was something that they needed more information 
about. He thought there was more power in a larger group, especially if 
there were things that were broken and not working well for communities. 
 
There was consensus for staff to refine options 2a, 3a, and 4 and have a 
public engagement process that would provide more context on those 
options. 
 
Planning Director Richards said for dusting off the 2003 plan, they would 
look at what was required for moving it forward as its own document and 
path. If it looked like it would not work from that perspective, they would 
look at whether it would work through the regional problem solving 
option or not. They would also work on a process for a legislative bill and 
on what the public process would look like. 
 
Councilor Garvin asked about the timing for staff to bring back these 
items. 
 
Planning Director Richards said it would be an expedited timeframe. 

 
3. ADJOURMENT:  Mayor Hill adjourned the meeting at 8:39 pm.   

 
 
      
     __________________________ 
     Claudia Cisneros, City Recorder 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

69



 

Page 1 of 18 
 

CITY OF McMINNVILLE 
MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

Held at the Kent L. Taylor Civic Hall on Gormley Plaza 
McMinnville, Oregon  

 
Tuesday, January 28, 2020 at 7:00 p.m.  

 
Presiding:  Scott Hill, Mayor 
 
Recording Secretary:   Claudia Cisneros 
  
Councilors:  Present   Excused Absence 

Kellie Menke 
Remy Drabkin    
Adam Garvin     
Sal Peralta 
Wendy Stassens 
Zack Geary    

       
Also present were City Manager Jeff Towery, City Attorney Spencer 
Parsons, City Recorder Claudia Cisneros, Chief of Police Matt Scales, 
Planning Director Heather Richards, Senior Planner Chuck Darnell, Parks 
and Recreation Director Susan Muir, Community Development Director 
Mike Bisset, and Jerry Eichten, McMinnville Community Media.   
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Hill called the meeting to order at 7:06 p.m. and 
welcomed all in attendance.   
 

2. PLEDGE: 
Councilor Geary led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
3. PUBLIC HEARING: 

 
a. CPA 1-19/ Ordinance 5084 – Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
b. ZC 1-19/ Ordinance 5085 – Zone Change 
c. PDA 2-19/ Ordinance 5086 – Planned Development Amendment 
d. PD 1-19/ Ordinance 5087 – Planned Development 
e. S 1-19/ Ordinance 5088 – Tentative Subdivision 
f. L 12-19/ Ordinance 5089 – Landscape & Street Tree Plan 
 
Opening Statement:  Mayor Hill read the opening statement and described 
the public hearing procedure and rules.  
 
Disclosures:  Mayor Hill opened the public hearing and asked if there was 
any objection to the jurisdiction of the Councilor to hear this matter. There 
was none. He asked if any Councilor wished to make a disclosure or abstain 
from participating or voting on this application. There was none. Mayor Hill 
asked if any Councilor needed to declare any contact prior to the hearing 
with the applicant or any party involved in the hearing or any other source of 

70



 

Page 2 of 18 
 

information outside of staff regarding the subject of this hearing. There was 
none. Mayor Hill asked if any Councilor had visited the site. If so, did they 
wish to discuss the visit to the site? Several Councilors had visited the site, 
but had no comments to make on the visit.  
 
Staff Presentation:  Senior Planner Darnell introduced the Baker Creek North 
Project. All applications were submitted together as a concurrent review. He 
described the site location and where each of the applications applied on the 
map. The Comprehensive Plan amendment would result in a reduction of the 
existing commercial designation to 6.62 acres. The rest of the property would 
be designated as residential. The zone change would change the property 
from the existing County zoning to C-3, General Commercial, and R-4, 
Residential. The Planned Development amendment was a request to reduce 
the size of the Planned Development to be consistent with the reduced 
Comprehensive Plan designation of commercial land and to amend the 
existing conditions of the approval to allow up to 120 multiple family units 
and a minimum of two acres of neighborhood commercial uses. No specific 
development plan was submitted for the site at this time. The review criteria 
related to the Planned Development amendment were from Code Section 
17.74.070 where special physical conditions or objectives of a development 
which the proposal would satisfy were needed to warrant a departure from 
the standard regulation requirements. The objectives of the proposed Planned 
Development amendment were to introduce a mix of uses by allowing 
multiple family dwelling units and provide neighborhood commercial uses 
within the site to serve surrounding residential development. The City 
Council must find that these special objectives, either as proposed or as 
revised with conditions of approval, warrant a departure from the standard 
regulation requirements. The Planning Commission found that special 
objectives could warrant a departure from the existing regulations if the 
development of the site was designed appropriately given the location was 
surrounded by residential uses and public parks and the intent was to provide 
neighborhood serving commercial uses. They recommended that the mixed 
uses be integrated on the site and that commercial uses were retained. They 
recommended a condition of approval to require a minimum size of the 
commercial development of at least five acres and to allow the multiple 
family development on the remaining two acres and as a mixed use 
development. Another condition was to allow up to 120 multiple family 
dwelling units if integrated with the neighborhood commercial uses. It was 
intended for the development to be incorporated in neighborhood scale 
development and integration could be either in mixed use buildings or 
integrated between buildings (which must be approved by the Planning 
Commission). Walking distance and pedestrian connections were a priority in 
the integrated design. Another condition was to limit the uses to 
neighborhood commercial uses. These were uses permitted in C-1 and also 
allow restaurants and were limited to 10,000 square feet in size except for 
grocery stores. The Planning Commission would review any other use for 
consistency with the neighborhood-serving commercial. Another condition 
required detailed development plans to be reviewed and approved by the 
Planning Commission. Site design requirements included ensuring 

71



 

Page 3 of 18 
 

neighborhood commercial scale and not strip development typical in other 
locations. The building entrances would be oriented towards the street, there 
would be human scale facades, shared access and internal circulation to 
minimize strip commercial, and community gathering space, landscaping, 
and additional open space for multi-family.  
 
Senior Planner Darnell went over the request for a new Planned 
Development Overlay District to allow 280 single family residential lots, 18 
open space tracts, and dedication of a parcel for a public park. It included 
requests for modifications from:  minimum lot sizes (use of lot size 
averaging), reduced side yard setbacks, lot dimensions (exceeding a 2:1 
depth-to-width ratio), driveway and alley widths, block length and block 
perimeter lengths, and street tree spacing standards. He explained the lot 
types proposed with a range of lot sizes and how they would spread 
throughout the subdivision phases. The reduced setbacks were requested as 
follows:  SFD-70, SFD-60, SFD-50, and SFD-40 would have a minimum 
five foot side yard setback, SFD-45 would have a minimum four foot side 
yard setback, SFD-30a and SFD-26a would have a minimum of three foot 
side yard setback, and Lots 131-135 and Lots 269-280 would have a 
minimum 30 foot rear yard setback for tree preservation. All front, exterior 
side, and rear setbacks would follow the R-4 requirements. The transition 
from higher to lower density would go from south to north. The denser lot 
types would be near the arterial street and future transit route and the less 
dense lot types would be along the bluff and sloped portions of the site to 
transition between development and natural areas. Conditions #1 and #2 
would require the plan to be binding on the site and allow lot size averaging 
as proposed. The smaller lots were proposed to be alley-loaded. It would 
reduce vehicle conflicts with sidewalk space, lessen garage door prominence 
on front facades, and some front auto common open space tracts. Conditions 
#15 and #16 required lots less than 40 feet wide to be alley loaded and that 
the alleys would be private. The larger lots were located along the bluff and 
sloped area on the north end of the site. The applicant was also proposing to 
dedicate Parcel D which included floodplains. Conditions #12 and #13 
required recommended geo-tech analysis prior to development and geo-tech 
recommendations during construction. Conditions #5, 6, and 7 required 
dedication of BPA Trail tracts (tracts I, J, K, & L) and required trail 
improvement to the same standard as existed south of Baker Creek Road. 
Condition #9 required an additional connection for pedestrian access from 
the northwest area of the site. Condition #11 would require an enhanced 
crossing at Kent Street. Condition #6 required the dedication of a park parcel 
and easement to connect to Oak Ridge Meadows. Condition #7 required 
improvement of the BPA Trail, BPA trailhead terminus, and greenway trail 
around the floodplain. There were a number of private recreational amenities 
and those would be maintained privately by an HOA. The lot sizes and 
dimensions proposed would result in denser detached single family housing.  
To avoid cookie cutter housing, the Planning Commission recommended that 
specific design standards apply at the time of building permit review. 
Condition #20 included design standards related to:  style and massing, 
quality and type of exterior materials, front porches/entry areas, roof design 

72



 

Page 4 of 18 
 

and materials, exterior doors and windows, garage door types, exterior 
lighting, and exterior colors. Condition #21 would not allow any same house 
design in adjacency to another, including both sides of the street. The 
tentative subdivision plan would be done in 10 phases. Condition #5 would 
approve the proposed phasing. Conditions #6 and #7 would require Phase 1A 
to expire two years from the date of approval and each subsequent phase 
would expire five years from the date of the approval. A Landscape Plan was 
submitted for review to show the open space tracts and street tree plantings. 
It included a request for removal of 17 deciduous trees, street tree plan for 
new and improved public rights-of-way, and landscaping in the open space 
tracts. The conditions of approval verified the approved tree species, allowed 
variations in spacing of street trees, identified additional locations for street 
trees, required tree species appropriate for planting near overhead electrical 
transmission lines, setback from utilities, planting standards, and submittal of 
a revised landscape plan that achieved all the required conditions of approval.  
 
Senior Planner Darnell discussed comments that had been received related to 
the Great Neighborhood Principles. These were not applicable to these 
applications as they were submitted prior to the approval of the Principles. 
However, the plans that were submitted included components of the 
Principles related to natural feature preservation, scenic views, parks and 
open spaces, pedestrian friendly, bike friendly, connected streets, 
accessibility, human scale design, mix of activities, urban-rural interface, 
housing for diverse incomes and generations, housing variety, and unique 
and integrated design elements. A traffic impact analysis had been provided 
by the applicant. It analyzed the Planned Development plan of 280 single 
family homes and 100,000 square feet of retail use. The 100,000 square feet 
of retail use was the worst-case scenario in terms of potential traffic 
generation as it was completed prior to application submittal. PDA 2-19 
Condition #7 would require an updated analysis prior to any development of 
the commercial site. The traffic study analyzed the intersections in close 
proximity to the site to meet a volume-to-capacity ratio of 0.90 or less. All of 
the intersections met the ratio except Michelbook and Baker Creek Road 
without a signal. The City’s Transportation System Plan did not identify the 
improvements around this site. There was some question about the modeling 
within the TSP and if what was being proposed was consistent. The TSP 
included system-wide traffic modeling based on the 2003 McMinnville 
Growth Management and Urbanization Plan. That plan identified a 
neighborhood activity center in this location that included some higher 
density uses similar to what was being proposed. Land west of Hill Road was 
not included in the Urban Growth Boundary but it was still in the TSP 
modeling. He gave a comparison of the TSP density assumptions and the 
Baker Creek North plan. The meetings that had been held on this project 
included a neighborhood meeting on November 1, 2018 and had 10 attendees 
and Planning Commission public hearing on December 5, 2019 where two 
items of written public testimony were received and three people testified in 
opposition. The applicant provided the suggested revisions to the conditions 
of approval related to the design standards. Staff was not recommending 
approval of the suggested revisions due to the changes from the Planning 

73



 

Page 5 of 18 
 

Commission’s recommendations. Three additional items of written public 
testimony had been received and were provided in the memorandum from 
January 27. Since the memo, staff had received four additional items of 
written public testimony and one additional letter from the applicant 
regarding the applicant’s traffic engineer’s response to the public testimony.  
 
Senior Planner Darnell said the Planning Commission’s recommendations 
were: 
 
CPA 1-19:  Approval 
ZC 1-19:  Approval with conditions (Not to be approved unless PDA 2-19 
and PD 1-19 were approved) 
PDA 2-19:  Approval with conditions 
PD 1-19:  Approval with conditions 
S 1-19:  Approval with conditions (Not to be approved unless PD 1-19 was 
approved) 
L 12-19:  Approval with conditions (Not to be approved unless S 1-19 was 
approved) 
 
The Council’s options were to complete and close the public hearing, 
deliberate, and take action on each of the six ordinances individually. They 
could approve as recommended by the Planning Commission or deny by 
providing findings of fact and direct staff to include findings in the decision 
document. The Council could also continue the public hearing to a date 
specific time. This would require a special City Council meeting tentatively 
on February 4, 2020. The 120 day deadline was February 8, 2020.  
 
Council Questions:  Councilor Drabkin asked about the conditions related to 
the commercial parcel and the 10,000 square foot restriction. Did a 
convenience store qualify as a grocery store?  
 
Senior Planner Darnell said there was no definition that differentiated 
between convenience and grocery store. 
 
Councilor Drabkin asked how the sign ordinance applied to the commercial 
zone.  

 
Senior Planner Darnell said in the conditions of approval for PDA 2-19, there 
were regulations for signs. The intention was that the signs would be more 
neighborhood scale and smaller than typical signs. No individual sign could 
exceed 36 square feet and internally illuminated signs were prohibited.  

 
 Councilor Drabkin asked about the appropriate trees for the BPA Trail.   
 

Senior Planner Darnell said McMinnville Water & Light provided comments 
on the tree species for the BPA Trail easement and the areas under the power 
lines. Those changes were in the conditions for L 12-19.  

 

74



 

Page 6 of 18 
 

Planning Director Richards said the food store retail use in the commercial 
zone was not defined. If there was a concern and the Council wanted to 
define it further, it was something they could amend as a condition.  

 
Councilor Garvin asked why they were allowing a 45 foot height limit in this 
zone.  

 
Senior Planner Darnell said it had to do with integrating the multi-family in 
the commercial uses. By allowing the additional height, the applicant could 
put in mixed use buildings. Anything above 35 feet would need to be stepped 
back to reduce the prominence on the façade.  
 
Planning Director Richards clarified in order to have three floors of 
residential over the ground floor of commercial they raised the height.   

 
Councilor Peralta asked for clarification on the original Development Plan 
and what was being requested. 

 
Planning Director Richards explained existing today was 11 acres of 
Commercial and no multi-family development was allowed. The rest of the 
property was in a County zone and did not have a plan for it yet. The request 
was to reduce the Commercial to 6 acres and to allow multi-family 
development with the Commercial. The rest of the property would be 
rezoned for the 280 single family dwelling units at a higher density than the 
single family zone. The Planning Commission recommended at least five 
acres be Commercial and allow for multi-family in a mixed use way. 

 
Councilor Peralta asked what the difference was between the traffic counts if 
they had 100,000 square feet of commercial and multi-family plus single 
family residential.   
 
Senior Planner Darnell said the traffic study included an analysis of the 280 
single family units and 100,000 square feet of retail. Those numbers showed 
3,700 average daily trips and for the 120 multiple family trips it would be 
653. The condition that the applicant had to do another analysis before they 
developed the site was to ensure that whatever mix of use that was built 
didn’t impact the surrounding street network. 
 
Planning Director Richards said the applicant had not submitted a site plan 
for the commercial acreage. They had to provide a worst case scenario for the 
rezone application. The 100,000 square feet represented the highest use of 
the property. They asked to put a maximum of 120 multiple family units on 
the commercial property, and multiple family generated less trips than retail 
commercial development. There had been questions as to how the system 
could accommodate this much housing units and commercial and they tried 
to show in the analysis what the transportation system was built to 
accommodate. The proposed applications would be less impactful than the 
Transportation System Plan modeled. 

 

75



 

Page 7 of 18 
 

Councilor Stassens asked how they determined the size of commercial 
needed to serve this area and were those conditions still consistent today.  

 
Planning Director Richards said through the Urban Growth Boundary 
discussions in the 1980s, it was identified that more commercial land was 
needed as neighborhood serving commercial. The five acres was designated 
for this parcel at that time and was adopted through Ordinance 4506. The 
Comprehensive Plan designation had 11 acres of commercial for this parcel 
and the applicant requested 2 acres of commercial. They were trying to honor 
the past by requiring the 5 acres.  

 
 Councilor Geary asked if the conditions were bound to the property. 
 

Senior Planner Darnell said the land use applications would apply to the 
property and would be transferred if it was sold.  

  
 Councilor Geary asked about the enforcement plan for the conditions.  
 

Senior Planner Darnell said most applied to the future development of the 
parcel and they would be reviewed at the time of subdivision platting, 
construction plans, building permit plans, and Planning Commission review.   

 
Planning Director Richards explained the process. Several conditions were 
relative to how the infrastructure was put on the ground and the conditions 
would need to be achieved before the plat was approved. When they came in 
for a building permit, it was reviewed by the planning and engineering teams. 
A permit was not released until those were achieved in the plan documents. 
The final certificate of occupancy was not released until everything was built 
to the way the conditions stated and as they were approved.  

 
 Councilor Garvin asked about cost recovery for the conditions. 
 

Planning Director Richards said they would not be in cost recovery. Staff 
worked hard to make sure they were being efficient with their time. Council 
could discuss at a later time if cost recovery for site and design standards and 
inspections was something they wanted to pursue. 

 
 Councilor Garvin asked if the review would bog down the permit process.   
 

Planning Director Richards said no, the planning review process was not a 
long process like the Building Department, McMinnville Water & Light, and 
Engineering Department’s processes.  

 
Councilor Geary asked if this was the same property that had the DEQ 
violations earlier in the year.  
 
Senior Planner Darnell stated those occurred on the south side of Baker 
Creek Road. 

76



 

Page 8 of 18 
 

Councilor Garvin asked about Condition #20, if someone wanted to change 
their exterior doors or paint their house, would they need to get approval 
from the Planning Department.  

 
Planning Director Richards said the reality was that unless it was triggered by 
a building permit, it would be driven by a complaint basis that would go into 
Code Enforcement.  

 
Councilor Stassens asked about the Michelbook and Baker Creek Road 
improvements. 

 
Senior Planner Darnell said there was nothing in the application related to 
capping the number of trips before that improvement was made. 

 
Councilor Geary asked what the plan was for the improvements on Baker 
Creek Road and Michelbook.  

 
Community Development Director Bisset said the Transportation System 
Plan anticipated that there would be a need for a traffic signal at Michelbook 
and Baker Creek Road. It was not currently programmed in a capital plan that 
would identify a target installation date. When the need for the signal became 
apparent, then they would add it to the capital plan. Included with the current 
safety improvements ODOT was working on at all of their signals along 
99W, there would be signal improvements to Baker Creek Road and Baker 
Street. He expected those safety improvements to be done in 2021.  

 
Councilor Garvin asked if there were response time concerns regarding this 
application.  

 
Planning Director Richards responded the application had been sent out to all 
the agencies to review. The Fire Department had looked at it for safety 
issues. There were no comments provided to the City by the Fire Department. 
The applicant had been working for 2 ½ years with the City and the Fire 
Marshall had been at the table for all those discussions.  

 
Applicant’s Testimony:  Gordon Root, Stafford Development, introduced the 
development team. They had been working with staff for 2 ½ years on this 
project. They were a local developer that worked in small cities in the 
Willamette Valley. Their focus was an innovative approach to community 
development dedicated to the ABCs of housing – attainability- balance – 
choice. They built communities with a diversity of housing types and lot 
sizes and made the lots they developed available to a variety of builders. 
They took their investment in the communities seriously. This project would 
bring $100 million in homes to this community excluding the commercial. 
He explained the site orientation and number of dwelling units in Baker 
Creek South. This was 278 workforce housing units. He understood when 
they were mandated to provide workforce housing that not everyone would 
like how it looked from the back. They did address those considerations and 
concerns. The families inside those homes really enjoyed being home 

77



 

Page 9 of 18 
 

owners. The park in that development was one of the most used parks in the 
City. They would pull their last permit in March for this development which 
showed how fast the community absorbed this type of housing. McMinnville 
had 141 residential 1 & 2 family dwelling limited permits opened between 
January 2019 and January 2020. Baker Creek South (East and West) 
represented 117 of those permits or 83% of the total permits pulled. They 
were meeting a need and building homes because people wanted to be in 
McMinnville. There was a demonstrated need for additional housing units. 
The Housing Needs Analysis showed that they would not be able to keep up 
and the housing shortage was projected to get worse. They were continuing 
to refine the products they were offering to reflect what residents wanted. He 
showed some illustrations of what Meadows Drive would look like looking 
north from Baker Creek Road. They would extend the stubbed streets on 
Blake Street, Shadden Drive, Meadows Drive, and Hill Road plus add a 
network of new internal local streets and private alleys. There would be 18 
tracts of open space and Parcel D, private HOA open space, extension of the 
power line trail north, and donation of a 15 acre parcel for a special use 
nature park. The ratio of the Planned Development area to new park space 
was 3:1, 45 acres of housing to 15 acres of park.  

 
Morgan Will, Project Manager, summarized the Comprehensive Plan 
amendment and Zone Change. Parcel A would be the commercial property 
and Parcel B would be Phase 2. Ordinance 4633 created the original area 
designated as Commercial, which was 12.34 acres. With the Hill Road 
expansion, the Commercial was reduced to 11.3 acres. This application 
proposed to shrink that to 6.62 acres. The zone change for the area would be 
to C-3 and the area remaining to the north would be zoned R-4. One of the 
goals was to provide a sense of uniformity and understanding of the overall 
picture by presenting all of the applications concurrently. Even though there 
was no development plan for the commercial area, they wanted the traffic 
study to show the worst case scenario. In terms of residential uses, the Baker 
Creek North plan was not an increase in residential density from what was 
assumed in the Transportation System Plan. They were proposing 280 units 
at this time. The plan also included commercial use and the traffic study used 
the assumption that it was developed at 10,000 square feet per acre for a full 
ten acres which would be 100,000 square feet. The City had required a 
minimum of five acres be commercial, which would be 50,000 square feet of 
commercial at the highest. With the 25% for open space, it would be less 
than that. The traffic study worst case scenario showed 3,775 trips, but it 
would be at least half of that number. This development would support the 
overall system with SDCs for sanitary sewer, parks and recreation, and 
transportation. The total amount of SDC fees would be $2,006,760. 
Regarding the traffic signal at Michelbook and Baker Creed Road, the 280 
residential lots would not trigger a traffic signal. It would need to go in 
before the commercial was built. He discussed the review criteria. The 
project was consistent with the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 
It was orderly and timely, considering the pattern of development, 
surrounding land uses, and any changes in the community to warrant 
amendment. The utilities and services could be efficiently provided. In 

78



 

Page 10 of 18 
 

addition, the housing policies of the McMinnville Comprehensive Plan gave 
added emphasis and the other policies contained in the plan shall not be used 
to exclude needed housing, unnecessarily decrease densities, or allow special 
conditions to be attached which would have the effect of discouraging 
needed housing through unreasonable cost or delay. For the Planned 
Development amendment, there were two existing conditions for this 
property, no residential was allowed and it had its own development 
standards per Ordinance 4506. The amendment would change the boundary, 
allow a maximum of 120 multi-family units, and a minimum of two acres of 
commercial uses. The City had changed that request to a minimum of five 
acres and added some new conditions. The PD amendment met all of the 
review criteria. The applicant may propose alternative design components 
when detailed development plans were submitted for review. The Planning 
Commission may review and approve these alternative design components if 
they were found to be consistent with the intent of the required site design 
components listed. Any future commercial development would come back to 
the Planning Commission. They had created a project with multiple lots 
which would provide a variety in the development pattern. There were 7 
different lot types, and 1/3 were large lots (102), 1/3 were medium lots (100), 
and 1/3 were small lots (78). The SFD–70 and SFD-60 were larger than a 
standard R-4 lot at 10,962 and 5,978 square foot lot area average, the SFD-50 
was similar to a standard R-4 lot at 6,578 square foot lot area average, the 
SFD-45 was almost the size of a standard R-4 lot at 4,693 square foot lot area 
average, and SFD-40 was a 4,154 square foot lot area average, and the 
SFDA-30 interspersed with the SFDA-26 would be 2,977 and 2,660 square 
foot lot area average. He showed an example of a residential alley with 
perpendicular parking spaces and showed a map and pictures of the open 
spaces and trails. There would be both private and public open spaces. The 
project would be done in 10 phases and he showed a graphic for how it 
would be done. Many mature trees would be preserved and they would be 
planting 458 new street trees and over 332 trees and shrubs in the open 
spaces. The applicant was requesting changes to the conditions of approval. 
For Condition #18, the applicant was requesting driveway widths in the right-
of-way. They were asking for 28 foot driveway widths for the SFD-70 and 
SFD-60 lots. They were proposing edits to Conditions #20 and Condition #11 
as well. 

 
Council Questions:  Councilor Drabkin said workforce housing was for 
teachers, nurses, police officers, etc., a wide range of professions. They 
seemed to be implying that they could not build an attractive house for 
workforce housing rates.  

 
Mr. Root said the comments he made related to public feedback about the 
back of the housing LGI built on Baker Creek West. That had been used as a 
justification to require Condition #20, which were architectural standards on 
the proposed homes. They built a full range of various houses. He thought it 
was an over-reaction and it took away their ability to build some of the 
highest demand types of housing. What they were proposing was similar to 
what they were building in Baker Creek East. He thought they would bring a 

79



 

Page 11 of 18 
 

variety of housing and a welcoming environment that the community would 
like. They needed to have the ability to build a single level three car garage 
house in McMinnville and the staff proposed provisions did not provide for 
that. The products that were not selling were single level homes with double 
car garages that backed up to the golf course and two story homes with two 
car garages. They wanted to provide a variety of homes that appealed to 
various people. The three car garage would provide more storage as well as 
more parking which would help keep people from parking on the street. 
 
Mr. Will said Condition #20 tried to require the rear yard of homes that were 
public facing to have special treatments and in their proposed change to the 
condition they added options for those elevation treatments. The condition 
was too prescriptive and the changes allowed a palette of options. 
 
There was discussion regarding the driveway widths and the requested 
change to Condition #18. The wider width would allow for rectangular 
driveways. 
 
Public Testimony:  

 
Proponents:  Jeff Odaw was a builder in Baker Creek South. He discussed 
how development would be affected by Condition #20. The reason he built in 
McMinnville was he could find a lot and build a single story house with a 
three car garage that he could sell for under half a million dollars which 
could not be done elsewhere in the Portland metro area. He would like to see 
the constraints on the development standards and driveways be removed.   

 
Vince Vincery was a builder in Baker Creek East. He would like to go back 
to the 30 foot driveway for the SFD-70 lots instead of the 28 feet.  

 
Brittney Ruiz, McMinnville resident, said since development on Hill Road, 
she had to find other alternate routes to get her kids to school because of the 
traffic. She was in support of the development, but wanted to make sure the 
traffic had been studied properly because there already was a lot of traffic 
and the area had not been built out yet.   

 
Duane Wilson, builder, requested approval of the application. Regarding 
Conditions #18 and #20, he thought the change to the driveway widths would 
make for a lot better situation. If they were too small, people would drive 
over the landscape area. It was very expensive for the builder for the length 
of time it took for review and to make the architectural changes. None of the 
other homes in the remainder of the Baker Creek community had the 
condition for the rear yard facades. He thought the development as proposed 
by the applicant solved most of the concerns, but it gave flexibility. By 
making it so restrictive on the builders and the costs involved, it prevented 
them from building a three car garage single story home.  

 
Jeff Bettnelli said he had been building homes in Yamhill County for 25 
years. When they got a 60-70 foot lot, it gave them the ability to build a 

80



 

Page 12 of 18 
 

single level home with three car garage. These lots sold fast. He had a lot in 
Baker Creek East that was a two level home with two car garage that had 
been sitting for months. He bought 10 lots in that subdivision and found that 
single level homes with three car garages were the demand. He thought the 
driveways needed to be the full width of the wing walls, which would be 30 
feet for a three car garage. The width was needed to maneuver vehicles and 
for not stepping out on the lawns. If someone had a small boat or trailer, they 
would need to be parked in the three car garage. He thought it was pretty 
diverse housing arrangement in Baker Creek East. It had a lot of diversity 
without putting tight parameters on the building components.  
 
Opponents:  Rick Weidner, McMinnville resident, was concerned about 
uniqueness and authenticity. Overbuilding would turn them into another 
Sherwood. There was a lack of executive level housing opportunities in 
McMinnville. He asked what retail company would want to be in that 
northwest corner of the City limits. He asked if Stafford would sell the retail 
site to become medical office buildings. He thought there should be higher 
income apartment options as well. Stafford would build some of these lots, 
but they would also sell some of them. He thought the apartments were out of 
scale and out of place.  

 
Pat Stinson, McMinnville resident, was a retired civil engineer. He was 
concerned about the traffic problems on 2nd Street and on Baker Hill Road. 
The assumption that traffic would be fine was hard to believe. Having ground 
floor commercial with residential on top would cause parking issues as 
residents would need parking as well as customers. They deserved quality 
development.  

 
Linda Lindsey, McMinnville resident, discussed what affordable housing was 
for the community. She handed out mortgage information to the Council. The 
median income for McMinnville was $57,246 and for that amount of money 
people qualified for a $250,000 to $280,000 loan for a house. The workforce 
housing from LGI was on average $345,000. They were able to buy the 
homes with zero down but in order to qualify they had to make $68,000 to 
$84,000 per year. This was not affordable. She thought they needed to look at 
other options for affordable builds.  

 
Scott Larson, McMinnville resident, had done a traffic report on Baker Creek 
Road. The report from the applicant was done in July when the kids were out 
of school. About 10,000 people went to the schools every day and caused 
much more traffic. In his report they came up with 8,100 trips and it did not 
include certain streets. With what the developer wanted to do, it would 
increase the trips by 6,677 when it was built out which was an 80% increase 
in traffic from what they had now. This was not where the density should be 
in the City. 

 
Mike Colvin, McMinnville resident, said his concerns were density and 
traffic. Putting this development in the northwest corner of Hill and Baker 
Creek Road would affect the quality of life of the current residents, 

81



 

Page 13 of 18 
 

especially with the potential traffic congestion. It would be an additional 
3,000 trips per day and Baker Creek Road was a hybrid street that connected 
at least eight cul-de-sac developments. It was the only exit from these 
developments and those residents would have to wait for a safe break from 
the east/west traffic before they could exit their developments. They already 
struggled with this during rush hours, especially when school was in session. 
There were future developments in the southwest Hill Road area that would 
be built and the traffic issues would be increased even more. Improvements 
needed to be added to the Transportation System Plan. Several policies in the 
Comprehensive Plan and TSP recommended spreading high density fairly 
around town close to highways and major arterials instead of a mile from the 
nearest highway. This area was not suited for high density and the proposed 
density would create the worst transportation corridor in town. He hoped they 
came up with a solution to the transportation before they made a decision. – 
see attachment exhibit.  

 
Markus Pfahler, McMinnville resident, said construction of this development 
coupled with other developments already approved or under construction in 
the proximity to Baker Creek Road would lead to problematic traffic. The 
most current traffic analysis in the Transportation System Plan was from 
2010. That analysis determined the peak evening delay at the intersection of 
Baker Creek and Pacific Highway was 13.3 seconds. It estimated that in the 
year 2023 it would be 19.6 seconds. Here in 2020 he sometimes had to wait 2 
light cycles to make the left turn onto Pacific Highway. Oakridge Meadows 
had a traffic study done where they estimated 1,020 trips for 100 single 
family homes which was 9.44 trips per home. The Baker Creek 
developments were adding 786 new homes and apartments which would 
generate 7,420 daily trips. They were constrained by two major arterial 
streets, 2nd Street and Baker, and the plans did not honor those constraints. 
They needed a traffic study before they built. He also discussed the dwelling 
design standards and how the 45 foot height was too high.  

 
Phil Loving, McMinnville resident, was a custom home builder. He urged the 
Council to vote no against the project moving forward as presented. He was 
against the design of the subdivision and the attitude towards density. Getting 
rid of R-1 subdivisions was not the answer and this was not affordable 
housing. Livability was what the City brought to people who lived here. 
There were 160 lots that were 4,500 square feet or less in size and more than 
70 lots that were 2,400 to 2,700 square feet in size. There were only 3 foot 
setbacks between most of the houses which meant less than 4 feet between 
gutters. How would people paint the outsides of their houses or what would 
happen when one of the houses caught on fire? There were no fire stations in 
the area. There would be no trees planted between the houses. All of the 
problems the developer was having could be solved by increasing the lot 
sizes. The standard used to be 9,000 square feet and that was how they got 
three car garages on the lots. They were trying to cram as much as they could 
into a small space, but the City did not need that. There would be nowhere to 
park on the street because of all the curb cuts and he questioned whether 
there would be space for garbage cans and fire trucks. 

82



 

Page 14 of 18 
 

Kathy Loving, McMinnville resident, said people moved to McMinnville 
because they were tired of the high traffic areas they were living in, being 
crammed into small spaces, and they wanted privacy and a backyard. This 
was 280 homes and there had been testimony about traffic issues. This was a 
huge development. If they wanted three car garages, the lots could be bigger 
and fewer units could be built. This proposal did not promote livability. 

 
Lana Brown, McMinnville resident, discussed the development creep that 
had happened in Portland that created livability issues and made her move to 
McMinnville. She had seen the increase in traffic in the time she had lived 
here. Today she had to wait through three lights to turn left from 99 to Baker 
Creek Road. She avoided 2nd Street because of the traffic. The density of the 
proposal would be using the only three streets in the area. She thought they 
needed to look at the traffic and livability before more homes were built. 

 
Larry Yoder, McMinnville resident, opposed the density of this development. 
High density did not produce livability. They had spent time talking about 
what brought people to McMinnville and it was the small town atmosphere. 
High density did not promote small town atmosphere. He challenged them to 
keep McMinnville’s small town atmosphere.  

 
Councilor Peralta asked how they could balance the issues of housing 
affordability and density with maintaining the small town atmosphere that 
had brought so many to the City which had contributed to overcrowding and 
a significant shortage of supply. 

 
Mr. Yoder thought the density needed to be around downtown, but putting 
the high rises on the perimeter did not make sense. People would have to 
drive everywhere and if they wanted a more walkable City they needed to put 
the high rises downtown. 

 
Rebuttal:  Mr. Will said the traffic study in the application addressed the 
traffic counts. They had analyzed the background traffic from the existing 
approved subdivisions in the area including Oakridge Meadows and Baker 
Creek South as well as applied the future growth rate. For the 280 dwellings 
using the 9.44 seconds was industry standard. The trips would be 2,643 trips 
per day and for the 10,000 square foot 10 acre commercial development, the 
estimate was 3,775 trips. The study was done by a professional engineer and 
showed that there was plenty of capacity.  
 
Mr. Root said traffic came with development. There was not much more that 
the developers could do about it as far as this property being on a couple of 
arterials and within the City limits with density mandates and designs. The 
development would provide SDCs for improvements to the infrastructure. It 
was important for the building community to be able to have the driveway 
widths as they had proposed. They were also requesting approval of the 
revised Condition #20, or if the Council did not want to approve the revised 
condition, he asked that they continue the hearing so they could work with 
staff to come up with a workable condition.  

83



 

Page 15 of 18 
 

Councilor Garvin asked if they could make the driveway widths work by 
having fewer lots. 

 
Mr. Root said $345,000 was a difficult price point to get to and they were 
trying to provide a diversity of housing. There were many would-be 
homeowners who liked the diversity of housing and Planned Developments. 
He did not think they wanted another homogenized unaffordable 
neighborhood.    

 
Council President Menke asked what the price point would be for the 2,600 
square foot lots. 

 
Mr. Root said they were trying to shoot for $300,000. They could not do it 
for less due to the cost of materials and labor. It was the most affordable new 
home that they could deliver to the market. 

 
Councilor Garvin asked if they went from 280 lots to 270 lots, would they be 
able to meet the setbacks and driveway widths.  
 
Mr. Root said if they could not arrive at a compromise on Condition #20, 
they would come in as a subdivision and do it in pieces. It would take away 
the City’s ability to extract the community benefit of the natural park. They 
were asking for a variance to the side setback. It was more efficient to come 
in as a whole. The development would be done in ten phases over several 
years. 

 
Councilor Garvin asked when in those years would the roads be connected to 
Oakridge Meadows.  

 
Mr. Root said it would be done in 3b after the pump station was built. That 
would be three to four construction seasons. 

    
Councilor Peralta asked how many years it would take to do all 10 phases. 
 
Mr. Root stated if the economy didn’t break, they were projecting a 5 year 
development cycle and a 7 year buildout.  

 
   Council Discussion:  There was discussion regarding Condition #20.  
 

Councilor Peralta asked about the policy they were making with respect to 
the width of the driveways, because of the smaller setbacks there would be 
less street parking?  

 
Planning Director Richards replied they had discussed the on street parking 
relative to how wide the driveway cuts were. Also as the lots got smaller, 
density became higher and they struggled to fit in street trees, utilities, and 
landscaping.   

 
   Councilor Drabkin asked why those were preferred over common wall units.  

84



 

Page 16 of 18 
 

Planning Director Richards said they had heard from the development 
community that townhomes and common walls were difficult to sell in 
McMinnville. 

 
   Councilor Drabkin asked about the revisions proposed by the applicant. 
 

Planning Director Richards said staff had not had time to vet it entirely, the 
revisions were submitted just days before the packet was sent out. If the 
Council wanted staff to review and vet them, they would need to continue the 
hearing. The crux of the issue for the single family three car garage was the 
requirement in the design standards that not more than 50% of the home be a 
garage wall for the front façade. Staff looked at what other communities had 
done and they allowed for the greater than 50% if there was something above 
it. They had heard tonight that single story three car garages were the most 
problematic with the design standards.  

 
Mayor Hill was in favor of continuing the public hearing for staff to go back 
and find a solution.  

 
Planning Director Richards said the applicant was willing to toll the clock to 
February 25 which would give staff time to review and vet the materials. A 
decision would need to be made that night. Another action the Council could 
take was to keep the record open but close the public hearing. They would 
come back on February 25 to deliberate and make a decision. 

 
City Attorney Parsons explained the options.  

 
Councilor Peralta had concerns about the revisions to the conditions as well 
as the density, parking, and trees. However he was mindful of the 
opportunity for park land and an intentional and planned development. He 
was in favor of continuing the hearing but deliberate tonight to make the next 
meeting shorter.  

 
Councilor Stassens thought they should give it more time so they could get 
direction from staff on the revisions and to review the late material that was 
submitted. She thought they should continue the hearing and deliberate at the 
next meeting. 

 
Councilor Geary did not need more time as he was opposed to the revised 
Condition #20.  

 
Councilor Garvin agreed that they needed a different version of Condition 
#20. There were other items in the applications that he was not in favor of, 
such as the 45 foot height and 2 acres of commercial.  

 
Councilor Drabkin hadn’t been able to compare the revised conditions and 
what she had seen in the revisions she did not like. There were a lot of 
adjustments throughout the application. She could deliberate on the 

85



 

Page 17 of 18 
 

applications and continue the hearing with the record open as long as they 
gave staff enough time to review the changes proposed. 

 
Council President Menke was not in favor of the revised Condition #20. She 
thought they should deliberate tonight and keep the record open so staff and 
the applicant could work out a compromise. 
 
Mayor Hill said he would not be in attendance on February 25 and he 
suggested continuing the hearing to March 10. 
 
The applicant was willing to extend the timeline to March 10. They formally 
requested that the hearing be continued. 
 
Councilor Geary was ready to make the decision tonight. The rest of the 
Council was willing to continue the hearing,   

 
Councilor Peralta MOVED to continue the hearing to March 10, leaving the 
record open for written testimony until February 4, applicant response until 
February 11, and final written arguments until February 18; SECONDED by 
Councilor Drabkin. Motion PASSED 5-1 with Councilor Geary opposed. 

 
Council direction to staff was based on the conditions recommended by the 
Planning Commission, to continue to analyze and bring back in a different 
way these items:  
• Clarifying traffic for a grocery store vs. convenience store 
• Condition #20 in the PD application and mirror Condition #11 in the 

Subdivision application 
• Taking the fragmented information regarding the traffic and putting it 

into context with the science taking into account the cumulative effect of 
the recently approved applications 

• Parking for the commercial/residential mixed use 
• Injecting language that drive thru-restaurants were not permitted  

 
4.   Ordinances – continued to March 10 
 
5.  INVITATION TO CITIZENS FOR PUBLIC COMMENT:  Mayor Hill 

invited the public to comment.    
 
There were no public comments.   
 

6.   ADVICE/ INFORMATION ITEMS 

6.a.   Reports from Councilors on Committee & Board Assignments 
 

Council President Menke said Visit McMinnville met and discussed how 
Transient Lodging Tax could be used. 
 
Mayor Hill announced next Monday he would give the State of the City 
address as well as volunteer recognition at the Mac Market. 

86



 

Page 18 of 18 
 

6.b.   Department Head Reports – None 
 
7.    RESOLUTION 
 
7.a.  Resolution No. 2020-07: A Resolution appointing members to the 

Enrichment Services Advisory Committee 
 

Parks and Recreation Director Muir said this was a follow up item from the 
Council’s October 22 Work Session. Staff was working on a Facilities 
Master Plan to replace the aging Community Center and the Aquatic Center 
into one facility. The Council asked that a study of the Library be included as 
well as City Hall and Fire Administration. The first step was to create an 
advisory committee. Staff kicked off the recruitment on November 18. They 
used NeoGov for the recruitment and had 40 applicants. They planned to 
provide childcare during the meetings. She was recommending a list of 20 
committee members and meetings would kick off on February 6 at 6:30 p.m.  

 
Councilor Geary asked if they would start using the NeoGov process for all 
of the City committees. 
 
Parks and Recreation Director Muir got some negative feedback about it 
because it was a lengthier process. It was good for collecting demographic 
data.   
 
Councilor Garvin thought there would be a good balance of demographics on 
the committee. 
 
Councilor Drabkin MOVED to adopt Resolution No. 2020-07 appointing 
members to the Enrichment Services Advisory Committee; SECONDED by 
Councilor Garvin. Motion PASSED 6-0. 

 
   8. ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Hill adjourned the City Council Meeting at 

11:10 p.m.  
 
 

   ____________________________________ 
      Claudia Cisneros, City Recorder 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

87



 
 

 P a g e  | 1 

City of McMinnville 
Fire Department 
175 NE 1st Street 

McMinnville, OR  97128 
(503) 435-5800 

www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov 
 

 
STAFF REPORT 
 
DATE: September 15, 2020  
TO: Mayor and City Councilors 
FROM: Rich Leipfert, Fire Chief 
SUBJECT: A Resolution to extend Resolution No. 2020-18 Declaring Local State of 

Emergency for City of McMinnville 
STRATEGIC PRIORITY & GOAL:  

 
OBJECTIVE/S: Lead and plan for emergency preparedness 
 
 
Report in Brief: This action is the consideration of a new resolution to extend Resolution No. 2020-18, 
Declaring Local State of Emergency for City of McMinnville.  
 
Background: On March 16th, 2020, Mayor Hill declared a State of Emergency for the City of 
McMinnville due to the COVID-19 Virus and its impact on the City of McMinnville. This action is allowed 
by City Emergency Operations Plan adopted by City Council in 2009, and ORS 401. Resolution No. 
2020-18 was ratified before City Council at the March 24th, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting and set 
to expire on May 1, 2020. Resolution 2020-28 went before City Council at the April 28th, 2020 Regular 
City Council meeting to extend Resolution 2020-18. Resolution 2020-28 was adopted and Emergency 
Declaration was extended to expire on June 27, 2020. Resolution 2020-43 went before City Council at 
the June 23rd, 2020 Regular City Council meeting to extend Resolution 2020-18. Resolution 2020-43 
was adopted and Emergency Declaration was extended to expire on July 31, 2020. Resolution 2020-48 
went before City Council at the July 28th, 2020 Regular City Council meeting to extend Resolution 
2020-43 . Resolution 2020-48 was adopted and Emergency Declaration was extended to expire on 
September 4, 2020. Resolution 2020-52 went before City Council at the August 25, 2020 Regular City 
Council meeting to extend Resolution 2020-43. Resolution 2020-52 was adopted and Emergency 
Declaration was extended to expire on October 2, 2020. 
 
Discussion: Resolution No. 2020-18 was scheduled to expire on May 1, but may be extended as 
necessary of the Common Council. COVID-19 continues to present a high potential public health threat 
to public health and safety, the duration of which is still unknown. The declaration of emergency is still 
needed to address the City’s ability to respond and recover from this emergency and therefore asking 
for Resolution No. 2020-59 to extend the state of emergency to November 3, 2020, but may be 
extended again as necessary of the Common Council. 
 
Attachments:   
Resolution Number 2020-59 

88

http://www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov/


 
 

 P a g e  | 2 

Resolution Number 2020-52 
Resolution Number 2020-48 
Resolution Number 2020-43 
Resolution Number 2020-28 
Resolution Number 2020-18 
Signed Declaration of State of Emergency  
 
Fiscal Impact: No changes 
 
 
Recommendation:  Council to adopt Resolution No. 2020-59 extending the duration of a State of 
Emergency for the City of McMinnville. 

89



Resolution No. 2020-59 
Effective Date: September 22, 2020 
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-59 

 
 A Resolution for City of McMinnville, Oregon Extending the City’s Declaration of 
State of Emergency Expressed in Resolution 2020-18. 
  
RECITALS: 
 

WHEREAS, The Mayor of the City of McMinnville signed a Declaration of State 
of Emergency on March 16, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, McMinnville City Council ratified Resolution No. 2020-18 effective 

March 24, 2020 declaring a state of emergency for the entire City of McMinnville in 
response to the COVID-19 pandemic; and 
 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2020-18 was scheduled to remain in effect until at 
least May 1, 2020, but was extended to June 27, 2020 by Resolution No. 2020-28 by the 
Common Council on April 28, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2020-28 was scheduled to remain in effect until June 

27, 2020, but was extended to July 31, 2020 by Resolution No. 2020-43 by the Common 
Council on June 23, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2020-43 was scheduled to remain in effect until July 

31, but was extended to September 4, 2020 by Resolution No. 2020-48 by the Common 
Council on July 18, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2020-48 was scheduled to remain in effect until 

September 4, but was extended to October 2, 2020 by Resolution No. 2020-52 by the 
Common Council on August 25, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, Adoption of this resolution will repeal and replace City of McMinnville 

Resolution No.’s 2020-28, 2020-43, 2020-48 and 2020-52; and 
 
WHEREAS, COVID-19 continues to present a high potential public health threat 

to public health and safety, the duration of which is still unknown. 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON, as follows: 
 

1. The declaration of emergency is still needed to address the City’s ability to respond 
and recover from this emergency.  

2. The Emergency Declaration was established in Resolution 2020-18 (March 24, 
2020) the resolution was been extended four times and most recently to October 
2, 2020 in Resolution 2020-52 (August 25, 2020 at Regular City Council Meeting) 
and shall be extended to October 2nd, 2020 by Resolution 2020-59. 

3. This resolution is effective immediately and shall remain in effect until November 
3, 2020, but may be extended as necessary by the Common Council. 

90



Resolution No. 2020-59 
Effective Date: September 22, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
 

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a meeting held the 
22nd day of September 2020 by the following votes: 

 
 

Ayes:                          
 

 

Nays:             
 
Abstain:               

 
 

  

Approved this 22nd day of September 2020. 
 
 
       
MAYOR 
 
 

 

Approved as to form:     Attest: 
 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
City Attorney      City Recorder 

91



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-52 

A Resolution for City of McMinnville, Oregon Extending the City's Declaration of 
State of Emergency Expressed in Resolution 2020-18. 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, The Mayor of the City of McMinnville signed a Declaration of State 
of Emergency on March 16, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, McMinnville City Council ratified Resolution No. 2020-18 effective 
March 24, 2020 declaring a state of emergency for the entire City of McMinnville in 
response to the COVID-19 pandemic; and 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2020-18 was scheduled to remain in effect until at 
least May 1, 2020, but was extended to June 27, 2020 by Resolution No. 2020-28 by the 
Common Council on April 28, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2020-28 was scheduled to remain in effect until June 
27, 2020, but was extended to July 31, 2020 by Resolution No. 2020-43 by the Common 
Council on June 23, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2020-43 was scheduled to remain in effect until July 
31, but was extended to September 4, 2020 by Resolution No. 2020-48 by the Common 
Council on July 18, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, Adoption of this resolution will repeal and replace City of McMinnville 
Resolution No.'s 2020-28, 2020-43 and 2020-48; and 

WHEREAS, COVID-19 continues to present a high potential public health threat 
to public health and safety, the duration of which is still unknown. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON, as follows: 

1. The declaration of emergency is still needed to address the City's ability to respond 
and recover from this emergency. 

2. The Emergency Declaration was established in Resolution 2020-18 (March 24, 
2020) the resolution was been extended three times and most recently to 
September 4, 2020 in Resolution 2020-48 (July 28, 2020 at Regular City Council 
Meeting) and shall be extended to October 2nd, 2020 by Resolution 2020-52. 

3. This resolution is effective immediately and shall remain in effect until October 2, 
2020, but may be extended as necessary by the Common Council. 

Resolution No. 2020-52 
Effective Date: August 25, 2020 
Page I of2 

92



Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a meeting held the 
25th day of August 2020 by the following votes : 

Ayes: __ D_r_a_b_ki~n~, _G_a_rv_i_n~, M_e_n~ke-'--1'--'P_e""'"'r ___ a~lt-'--a~, S~ta~s ___ s~e---ns~------

Nays: -----------------------

Abstain : -----------------------

Approved this 25th day of August 2020. 

MAYOR 

City Attorney 

Resolution No. 2020-52 
Effective Date: August 25, 2020 
Page 2 of2 

Attest: 

93



94



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-43 

A Resolution for City of McMinnville, Oregon Extending the City's Declaration of 
State of Emergency Expressed in Resolution 2020-18. 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, The Mayor of the City of McMinnville signed a Declaration of State 
of Emergency on March 16, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, McMinnville City Council ratified Resolution No. 2020-18 effective 
March 24, 2020 declaring a state of emergency for the entire City of McMinnville in 
response to the COVID-19 pandemic; and 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2020-18 was scheduled to remain in effect until at 
least May 1, 2020, but was extended to June 27, 2020 by Resolution No. 2020-28 by the 
Common Council on April 28, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, COVID-19 continues to present a high potential public health threat 
to public health and safety, the duration of which is still unknown. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON, as follows: 

1. The declaration of emergency is still needed to address the City's ability to respond 
and recover from this emergency. 

2. The Emergency Declaration was established in Resolution 2020-18 (March 24, 
2020) the resolution was extended to June 27, 2020 in Resolution 2020-28 (April 
28, 2020) shall be extended to July 31, 2020. 

3. This resolution is effective immediately and shall remain in effect until July 31, 
2020, but may be extended as necessary by the Common Council. 

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a meeting held the 
23rd day of June 2020 by the following votes: 

Ayes : ___ ____;D=-=-=ra=b;.:;..:k.:.:...in:.,..., -=Gc...=a.:.:...rv.=..:;i.:..:.n.,_, G=e=ary:....L-1-, =M..:...::e;.;..n:.:..:k=e.,_, P;_e=.;rc..::;a=lt=a.,_, S-=-t=a=s=se=n-'-'se,..___ 

Nays: 

Approved this 23rd day of June 2020. 

~ e:;r-d. J,:;-

MAYOR 

City Recorder 

95



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-28 

A Resolution for City of McMinnville, Oregon Extending the City's Declaration of 
State of Emergency Expressed in Resolution 2020-18. 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, The Mayor of the City of McMinnville signed a Declaration of State 
of Emergency on March 16, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, McMinnville City Council ratified Resolution No. 2020-18 effective 
March 24, 2020 declaring a state of emergency for the entire City of McMinnville in 
response to the COVID-19 pandemic; and 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2020-18 was scheduled to remain in effect until at 
least May 1, 2020, but may be extended as necessary by the Common Council; and 

WHEREAS, COVID-19 continues to present a high potential public health threat 
to public health and safety, the duration of which is still unknown. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON, as follows: 

1. The declaration of emergency is still needed to address the City's ability to respond 
and recover from this emergency. 

2. The Emergency Declaration established in Resolution 2020-18 (March 24, 2020) 
shall be extended to June 27, 2020. 

3. This resolution is effective immediately and shall remain in effect until June 27, 2020, 
but may be extended as necessary by the Common Council. 

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a meeting held the 
28th day of April 2020 by the following votes: 

Ayes: ---=D.;...:ra=b:....:...k=in=, _;:G::....:a=rv...:..;i:..:....:n_._1 -=G-=e-=a.:....Jry'-'-, :..:....:M:..:....:e:;_;_n.:..:...k=e_._, "-P-=-e.;..;;ra=lt=a_._, -=-S=ta-'-"s....:C..s-"-en:....:...sc....._ __ _ 

Nays: 

Approved this 28th day of April 2020. 

~ ~;)::--

MAYOR 

Resolution No. 2020-28 
Effective Date: April 28, 2020 
Page I of I 

Attest: 

OiwJia C1Wi<b 
City Recorder 

96



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-18 

A Resolution for City of McMinnville, Oregon Ratifying the Declaration of State of 
Emergency signed by Mayor Scott Hill on March 16, 2020. 

RECITALS: 

· WHEREAS, Governor Kate Brown, on March 8, 2020 declared a state of emergency 
due to the COVID-19 virus, finding that COVID-19 has created a threat to public health and 
safety, and constitutes a statewide emergency under ORS 401 .025(1 ); and 

WHEREAS, The World Health Organization , on March 11 , 2020 declared COVID-19 
to be a pandemic threat that causes respiratory distress with the potential to cause serious 
illness and loss of life ; and 

WHEREAS, The City of McMinnville may require significant resources to provide for 
the health and safety of residents; and 

WHEREAS, The State of Oregon, pursuant to ORS 401 .309(1); authorizes the 
governing body of Oregon cities and counties to declare a local state of emergency; and 

WHEREAS, The City of McMinnville, pursuant to the Emergency Operation Plan 
authorized the Mayor to declare a local state of emergency; and 

WHEREAS, The Mayor of the City of McMinnville finds that conditions require a local 
state of emergency; and 

WHEREAS, The Mayor of the City of McMinnville signed a Declaration of State of 
Emergency on March 16, 2020; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MCMINNVILLE OREGON, HEREBY RATIFY THE DECLARATION OF STATE 
OF EMERGENCY SIGNED BY MAYOR SCOTT HILL ON MARCH 16,2020 AND 
AUTHORIZES THE FOLLOWING: 

1. City Manager of the City of McMinnville, as the Emergency Manager as indicated 
in the Emergency Operation Plan, may take any and all necessary steps 
authorized by law to coordinate a response to this emergency; and 

2. The state of emergency declaration provides the City Manager of the City of 
McMinnville is authorized to reallocate any city funds for emergency use; and 

3. City Manager of the City of McMinnville is authorized to coordinate an effective 
response by redirecting funding for emergency use as needed and suspending 
standard procurement procedures; and 

4. This resolution is effective immediately and shall remain in effect until at least 
May 1, 2020, but may be extended as necessary. 

Resolution No. 2020- 18 
Effective Date: March 16, 2020 
Page 1 of2 

97



Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a meeting held the 24th 
day of March 2020 by the following votes: 

Ayes : Ii: &lllti: :, Garvin, Geary, Menke, Peralta, Stassens 

Nays: ------------------

Approved this 24th day of March 2020. 

Resolution No. 2020-18 
Effective Date: March 16, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

Attest: 

Cicwct(l ClsrlQUO 
City Recorder 

98



99



100



Lafayette Avenue Overlay, Project 2019-9 
  P a g e  | 1 

City of McMinnville 
Community Development Department 

231 NE Fifth Street 
McMinnville, OR  97128 

(503) 434-7312 
 

www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
DATE: September 9, 2020  
TO: Jeff Towery, City Manager 
FROM: Mike Bisset, Community Development Director 
SUBJECT: Apron & Taxilane Rehabilitation Project, Project 2017-10 
 
 
Report in Brief:   
This action is the consideration of a resolution to award a public improvement contract in the amount of 
$1,272,382.00 to K&E Excavating for the construction of the Apron & Taxilane Rehabilitation Project, 
Project 2017-10. 
 
Background:   
This apron and taxilane project at the McMinnville Municipal Airport project consists of reconstructing 
approximately 9,345SY of aircraft apron, design apron geometry and size to accommodate 19 current 
tie down positions, demolition and removal of existing pavement, preparations of a pavement sections 
design based on the anticipated aircraft using the apron, possible subgrade stabilization, drainage 
structures and underdrains, shoulder work, pavement markings, and construction of new tie down 
anchors. 
 
Construction is expected to begin in August of 2021, and be completed in October 2021. 
 
Discussion:  
On Tuesday, May 12, 2020, five bids were received, opened and publicly read for the construction of 
the Apron & Taxilane Rehabilitation Project, Project 2017-10.  The bid results are as follows: 
  
K&E Excavating $1,272,382.00  
Kodiak Pacific  $1,489,089.89  
Kerr Contractors $1,588,923.00 
Tapani $1,589,938.50  
North Santiam Paving  $2,045,102.00  

 
The construction estimate for this work was $1,8,57,086.00. 
 
The bids were reviewed by City staff, and by Century West Engineering – the City’s design consultant 
for the project.  The bid from K&E Excavating, in the amount of $1,272,382.00, was deemed to be the 
lowest responsible and responsive bid.  
 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution No. 2020-58 
2. Century West Engineering Recommendation of Award 

 

101

http://www.mcminnvilleoregon.gov/


Lafayette Avenue Overlay, Project 2019-9 
  P a g e  | 2 

Fiscal Impact: 
Funding for the construction of this project will be covered by the Federal Aviation Administration via an 
airport improvement grant, and the project will be included in the City’s Airport Fund (Fund 25) FY22 
budget.    
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the attached resolution awarding the public improvement 
contract for the construction of the Apron & Taxilane Rehabilitation Project, Project 2017-10, in the 
amount of $1,272,382.00, to K&E Excavating.  
 

102



Resolution No. 2020-58 
Effective Date: September 22, 2020 
Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020 - 58 
 

 A Resolution awarding the contract for the Apron & Taxilane Rehabilitation 
Project, Project 2017-10. 
 
RECITALS:   
 
 WHEREAS, On Tuesday, May 12, 2020, five bids were received, opened and 
publicly read for the construction of the Apron & Taxilane Rehabilitation Project, Project 
2017-10.   
 
 WHEREAS, The low bidder, K&E Excavating, met all of the bid requirements, 
and should be considered the lowest responsible bidder.   
 
 WHEREAS, Funding for this project will be covered by the Federal Aviation 
Administration via an airport improvement grant, and the project will be included in the 
City’s Airport Fund (Fund 25) FY22 budget.   
 
           NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF McMINNVILLE, OREGON, as follows: 

 
1. That entry into a public improvement contract with K&E Excavating, in the 

amount of $1,272,382.00, for the Apron & Taxilane Rehabilitation Project, 
Project 2017-10, is hereby approved. 

 2. That the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute the public 
improvement contract. 

3. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage and shall 
continue in full force and effect until revoked or replaced. 

 
 Adopted by the Common Council of the City of McMinnville at a regular meeting 
held the 22nd day of September 2020 by the following votes: 
 

Ayes:                          
 

 

Nays:             
 
Abstain:               

 
  

Approved this 22nd day of September 2020. 
 
 
       
MAYOR 
 

 

Approved as to form:     Attest: 
 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
City Attorney      City Recorder 

103



 

 
5331 SW Macadam Ave, Suite 287 503.419.2130 office  
Portland, OR 97239 503.639.2710 fax 

 

 

May 13, 2020 

 

Mike Bisset 

City of McMinnville 

231 NE Fifth Street  

McMinnville, OR 97128 

 

Recommendation of Award 
McMinnville Municipal Airport 
Apron & Taxilane Rehabilitation Project, FAA AIP #3-41-0036-019 
 
 
Mike- 

Bids for the above-mentioned project were received and opened on May 12, 2020. Five bids were 

received. The low bid was received from K&E Excavating. 

We have reviewed K&E’s bid and found no arithmetic errors in their proposal, and their bid was found to 

be ‘responsive’ to the bidding requirements. The total amount bid by K&E to construct was 

$1,272,382.00. A copy of the bid tabulation is enclosed. 

We therefore recommend that this project be awarded to K&E Excavating, for the proposed amount of 

$1,272,382.00 to construct the project. 

Please contact me if you have any questions about our recommendation. 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Bryan Condon, P.E. 
Project Manager 
 
 
Cc: Ian Bradshaw, FAA 
Encl. 
 

 

 

 

104

bcondon
Image



Bid Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total
1 Mobilization (Section C-105) 1 LS 1 LS 121,500.00$         121,500.00$         126,000.00$         126,000.00$         160,063.39$         160,063.39$         155,000.00$         155,000.00$         150,000.00$         150,000.00$         218,000.00$         218,000.00$         
2 Temporary Flagging, Marking, and Signing (Sheet G-2) 1 LS 1 LS 8,000.00$             8,000.00$             33,000.00$           33,000.00$           32,500.00$           32,500.00$           20,000.00$           20,000.00$           33,000.00$           33,000.00$           42,000.00$           42,000.00$           
3 Low Level Barricades (Sheet G-2) 1 LS 1 LS 9,500.00$             9,500.00$             15,000.00$           15,000.00$           1,600.00$             1,600.00$             30,000.00$           30,000.00$           35,000.00$           35,000.00$           45,600.00$           45,600.00$           
4 Safety Orange Mesh Construction Fence 1 LS 1 LS 3,000.00$             3,000.00$             3,500.00$             3,500.00$             2,000.00$             2,000.00$             8,000.00$             8,000.00$             15,000.00$           15,000.00$           2,500.00$             2,500.00$             
5 Construction Staking (Section 50) 1 LS 1 LS 15,000.00$           15,000.00$           25,000.00$           25,000.00$           27,300.00$           27,300.00$           30,000.00$           30,000.00$           29,000.00$           29,000.00$           18,000.00$           18,000.00$           
6 Asphalt Concrete Pavement Removal (Item P-101) 9,171 SY 9171 SY 25.00$                  229,275.00$         2.00$                    18,342.00$           1.50$                    13,756.50$           6.00$                    55,026.00$           10.00$                  91,710.00$           3.30$                    30,264.30$           
7 Temporary Air and Water Pollution, Soil Erosion, and Siltation Control (C-102) 1 LS 1 LS 5,000.00$             5,000.00$             33,500.00$           33,500.00$           34,200.00$           34,200.00$           41,000.00$           41,000.00$           35,000.00$           35,000.00$           21,000.00$           21,000.00$           
8 Unclassified Excavation (Item P-152) 4,261 CY 4261 CY 35.00$                  149,135.00$         19.00$                  80,959.00$           25.50$                  108,655.50$         24.00$                  102,264.00$         13.00$                  55,393.00$           31.10$                  132,517.10$         
9 Embankment In-Place (Item P-152) 250 CY 250 CY 30.00$                  7,500.00$             9.00$                    2,250.00$             18.00$                  4,500.00$             4.00$                    1,000.00$             25.00$                  6,250.00$             5.80$                    1,450.00$             
10 Stripping (Item P-152) 760 CY 760 CY 35.00$                  26,600.00$           17.50$                  13,300.00$           64.00$                  48,640.00$           30.00$                  22,800.00$           35.00$                  26,600.00$           26.00$                  19,760.00$           
11 Unsuitable Excavation (Item P-152) 3,861 CY 3861 CY 40.00$                  154,440.00$         14.00$                  54,054.00$           27.00$                  104,247.00$         17.00$                  65,637.00$           15.00$                  57,915.00$           26.00$                  100,386.00$         
12 Subgrade Stabilization (Item P-152) 3,861 CY 3861 CY 60.00$                  231,660.00$         37.50$                  144,787.50$         54.00$                  208,494.00$         46.00$                  177,606.00$         44.00$                  169,884.00$         65.00$                  250,965.00$         
13 Geotextile Fabric (Item P-152) 11,584 SY 11584 SY 3.00$                    34,752.00$           1.00$                    11,584.00$           1.00$                    11,584.00$           2.00$                    23,168.00$           1.25$                    14,480.00$           1.00$                    11,584.00$           
14 Geogrid (Item P-152) 23,167 SY 23167 SY 3.00$                    69,501.00$           1.50$                    34,750.50$           2.00$                    46,334.00$           2.50$                    57,917.50$           2.00$                    46,334.00$           1.80$                    41,700.60$           
15 Subbase Course (Item P-154) 2,982 CY 2982 CY 40.00$                  119,280.00$         50.00$                  149,100.00$         47.00$                  140,154.00$         52.00$                  155,064.00$         61.00$                  181,902.00$         72.00$                  214,704.00$         
16 Crushed Aggregate Base Course (Item P-209) 3,231 TON 3231 TN 60.00$                  193,860.00$         26.00$                  84,006.00$           38.00$                  122,778.00$         50.00$                  161,550.00$         45.00$                  145,395.00$         67.00$                  216,477.00$         
17 Asphalt Course (Item P-401) 2,542 TON 2542 TN 120.00$                305,040.00$         125.00$                317,750.00$         106.00$                269,452.00$         120.00$                305,040.00$         130.00$                330,460.00$         163.00$                414,346.00$         
18 Emulsified Asphalt Prime Coat (Item P-602) 15 TON 15 TN 900.00$                13,500.00$           1.00$                    15.00$                  106.00$                1,590.00$             1.00$                    15.00$                  600.00$                9,000.00$             1,800.00$             27,000.00$           
19 Emulsified Asphalt Tack Coat (Item P-603) 1 TON 1 TN 900.00$                900.00$                1.00$                    1.00$                    1.00$                    1.00$                    1.00$                    1.00$                    1,000.00$             1,000.00$             990.00$                990.00$                
20 Tie Down Anchor with Chains (P-610) 57 EA 57 Each 1,200.00$             68,400.00$           600.00$                34,200.00$           822.00$                46,854.00$           500.00$                28,500.00$           500.00$                28,500.00$           1,700.00$             96,900.00$           
21 Existing Tie Down Removal (P-610) 1 LS 1 L.S. 28,500.00$           28,500.00$           6,000.00$             6,000.00$             5,600.00$             5,600.00$             11,000.00$           11,000.00$           5,500.00$             5,500.00$             11,000.00$           11,000.00$           
22 Pavement Making (first application) (Item P-620) 1,278 SF 1410 SF 1.00$                    1,410.00$             1.50$                    2,115.00$             1.30$                    1,833.00$             2.00$                    2,820.00$             1.25$                    1,762.50$             2.00$                    2,820.00$             
23 Pavement Marking (final application) (Item P-620)  1,278 SF 1410 SF 1.00$                    1,410.00$             1.50$                    2,115.00$             1.10$                    1,551.00$             2.00$                    2,820.00$             1.05$                    1,480.50$             2.00$                    2,820.00$             
24 Pavement Marking Removal (Item P-620) 34 SF 79 SF 2.00$                    158.00$                7.00$                    553.00$                6.50$                    513.50$                10.00$                  790.00$                6.00$                    474.00$                11.00$                  869.00$                
25 12" Corrugated Polyethylene (HDPE) Storm Pipe - Paved Areas (Item D-701) 228 LF 228 LF 55.00$                  12,540.00$           55.00$                  12,540.00$           73.00$                  16,644.00$           90.00$                  20,520.00$           90.00$                  20,520.00$           73.00$                  16,644.00$           
26 12" Corrugated Polyethylene (HDPE) Storm Pipe - Unpaved Areas (Item D-701) 45 LF 45 LF 45.00$                  2,025.00$             48.00$                  2,160.00$             101.00$                4,545.00$             80.00$                  3,600.00$             78.00$                  3,510.00$             73.00$                  3,285.00$             
27 6" HDPE Underdrains (Item D-705) 920 LF 920 LF 17.50$                  16,100.00$           35.00$                  32,200.00$           30.00$                  27,600.00$           65.00$                  59,800.00$           35.00$                  32,200.00$           48.00$                  44,160.00$           
28 Underdrain Cleanout Wye (Item D-705) 5 EA 5 Each 500.00$                2,500.00$             1,100.00$             5,500.00$             1,200.00$             6,000.00$             500.00$                2,500.00$             1,200.00$             6,000.00$             1,500.00$             7,500.00$             
29 Catch Basin (Item D-751) 3 EA 3 Each 3,050.00$             9,150.00$             4,750.00$             14,250.00$           5,800.00$             17,400.00$           5,000.00$             15,000.00$           5,600.00$             16,800.00$           5,300.00$             15,900.00$           
30 48" Flat Top Manhole with Open Grate (Item D-751) 1 EA 1 Each 5,000.00$             5,000.00$             5,000.00$             5,000.00$             9,500.00$             9,500.00$             7,000.00$             7,000.00$             5,000.00$             5,000.00$             7,700.00$             7,700.00$             
31 Connect to Exist Storm System, Install New Storm Structure on Exist Pipe (Item D-751) 2 EA 2 Each 600.00$                1,200.00$             1,250.00$             2,500.00$             2,300.00$             4,600.00$             2,500.00$             5,000.00$             600.00$                1,200.00$             4,100.00$             8,200.00$             
32 Connection to Existing Storm System, New Pipe to Existing Structure (Item D-751) 1 EA 1 Each 1,500.00$             1,500.00$             1,250.00$             1,250.00$             1,400.00$             1,400.00$             2,500.00$             2,500.00$             7,500.00$             7,500.00$             2,250.00$             2,250.00$             
33 Existing Manhole Adjustment (Item D-751) 1 EA 1 Each 750.00$                750.00$                1,250.00$             1,250.00$             1,500.00$             1,500.00$             2,500.00$             2,500.00$             153.00$                153.00$                560.00$                560.00$                
34 General Storm System Removal (Item D-751) 1 LS 1 LS 4,000.00$             4,000.00$             2,000.00$             2,000.00$             3,000.00$             3,000.00$             12,000.00$           12,000.00$           20,000.00$           20,000.00$           600.00$                600.00$                
35 Seeding (Item T-901) 0.5 ACRE 0.5 Acre 10,000.00$           5,000.00$             3,700.00$             1,850.00$             5,400.00$             2,700.00$             5,000.00$             2,500.00$             10,000.00$           5,000.00$             29,300.00$           14,650.00$           

1,857,086.00$   1,272,382.00$   1,489,089.89$   1,589,938.50$   1,588,923.00$   2,045,102.00$   

K&E Excavating Kodiak Pacific Tapani Kerr Contractors North Santiam Paving

Bid Complete & Signed? X X X X X
Addendum 1 Acknowledged? X X X X X
Addendum 2 Acknowledged? X X X X X

X X X X X
Qualification Statement Submitted? X X X X

X X X X X
X X X X X

Letter of Intent Submitted? (If DBE  Used) X X X X X
Restriction on Federal Public Works Projects form Submitted? X X X X X

Bidder's Certification Submitted? X X X X X
Buy American Certification Submitted? X X X X X

Bidders List Submitted? X X X X X
1st Tier Submitted? X X X X X

McMinnville Municipal Airport         
Apron & Taxilane Rehabilitation Project -  AIP #3-41-0036-019  - City Project 2017-10        
Bids Opened 5-12-20 @ 2pm K&E Excavating

Certification of Nonsegregated Facilities Submitted?

Bid Bond & Power of Attorney?

Bidders  Statement  on  Previous  Contracts  Subject  to  EEO Clause Submitted?

Total Bid

Kodiak Pacific Tapani Kerr Contractors North Santiam PavingEngineer's Estimate

105


	1.a. Agenda 09.22.20
	1.b.1. 9-22-2020 City Council Level 10 Team Meeting Agenda                     .._
	2.a.1. McMinnville Manufacturing Day 2020 proclamation
	2.b.1. Latinx Heritage Month Proclamation
	4.a.1. MDA Presentation
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Dave Rucklos	
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	2020�Membership���Stabilizing in the face of a Pandemic�
	Slide Number 18
	The Future�is Now

	4.a.2. MDA_ProgEvalRpt_Final
	5.b.1. Staff Report 09.16.2020 DEI Update
	6.a.1. 2020-01-22 Work Session Meeting Minutes - Draft
	6.b.1. 2020-01-28 Regular Meeting Minutes
	6.c.1. Staff Report Resolution No. 2020-59
	6.c.2. Resolution 2020-529
	6.c.3. RES 2020-52
	6.c.4. RES 2020-48
	6.c.5. RES 2020-43
	6.c.6. RES 2020-28
	6.c.7. RES 2020-18
	6.c.8. Declaration of State of Emergency signed by Mayor
	7.a.1. Staff Report - Apron Rehab Bid Award 092220
	7.a.2. Attachment 1 -Resolution (Apron Rehab)
	7.a.3. Attachment 2 - MMV Apron Recommendation of Award
	Addendum.pdf
	Attachment 3c - McMinnville Council and Executive Team Interview Finding...
	Attachment 3d - Draft City Council _ Q4 2020 Master Issues List_  City o...
	Master Issues List

	Council Group Agreement Adopted 5-14-19 - Final




